NOTICE OF REGULAR MEETING
March 14, 2017
MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL
STATE OF TEXAS AGENDA
COUNTY OF MONTGOMERY '
CITY OF MONTGOMERY

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that a Regular Meeting of the Montgomery City Council will be held
on Tuesday, March 14, 2017 at 6:00 p.m. at the City of Montgomery City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville
Road, Montgomery, Texas for the purpose of considering the following:

CALL TO ORDER

INVOCATION

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

YISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to
speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. City Council may not discuss or take any
action on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the
time allowed per speaker may be limited.

CONSENT AGENDA:

1. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held
on February 28, 2017.

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

2. Consideration and possible action regarding a Ultility and Economic Feasibility Study for
KENROC Development.

Consideration and possible action regarding Longview Greens Miniature Golfing variance
request to allow gravel as a parking surface.

L2

4. Consideration and possible action regarding the City Engineer’s Report on Buffalo Springs
Road Bridge Repair.




5. Discussion regarding Buffalo Springs Bridge Repair — Amy Font
6. Consideration and possible action regarding City property tax exemptions.

7. Consideration and possible action regarding placing a fee on Professional Photographers
at Fernland Historic Park,

8. Consideration and possible action regarding adopfion of the following Resolution:
ARESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY REGARDING OPPOSITION TO

S.B.2 AND REQUESTING SENATOR ROBERT NICHOLS TO VOTE AGAINST THE
MEASURE.

9. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:
AN ORDINANCE REGARDING LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL

ZONING DISTRICTS IN THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS; PROVIDING
DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, APPLICABILITY, VARIANCES, AND LANDSCAPE
PLAN APPROVAL; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND TEXAS OPEN
MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON

PUBLICATION.

10. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED TERRITORY OF
14.5003 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN THE JOHN H.
CORNER SURVEY, ABSTRACT 8§, TO THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS, AND EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY LIMITS
OF SAID CITY SO AS TOINCLUDE SAID HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED PROPERTY
WITHIN SAID CITY LIMITS, AND GRANTING TO ALL THE INHABITANTS OF
SAID PROPERTY ALL THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF OTHER CITIZENS AND
BINDING SAID INHABITANTS BY ALL OF THE ACTS, ORDINANCES,
RESOLUTIONS, AND REGULATIONS OF SAID CITY; ADOPTING AN
ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN FOR SAID ANNEXATION; PROVIDING A
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND
PROVDING THE EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE OF THE ORDINANCE.,

EXECUTIVE SESSION:

The City Council reserves the right to discuss any of the items listed specifically under this heading or
for any items listed above in executive closed session as permitted by law including if they meet the
qualifications in Sections 551.071(consultation with attorney), 551.072 (deliberation regarding reai
property),551.073 (deliberation regarding gifts), 551.074 (personnel matters), 551.076 (deliberation
regarding security devices), and 551.087 (deliberation regarding economic development negotiations)
of Chapter 551 of the Government Code of the State of Texas.




11. Convene into Closed Executive Session as authorized by the Texas Open Meetings Act,
Sections 551.071 (consultation with attorney), and 551,074 (personnel matters regarding
Employment Agreement renewal with the City Administrator).

2. Convene into Open Session.

POSSIBLE ACTION FROM EXECUTIVE SESSION:

13. Consideration and possible action resulting from the item(s) listed under Executive Session.

COUNCIL INQUIRY:

Pursuant to Texas Government Code Sect. 551.042 the Mayor and Council Members may inquire about
a subject not specifically listed on this Agenda. Responses are limited to recitation of existing policy
or a statement of specific factual information given in response to the inquiry. Any deliberation or
decision shall be limited to a proposal to place on the agenda of a future meeting.

S S 1]
ADJOURNMENT ;3‘3:&19354%3%

2 .... .'.. f‘ ‘
£0§ , '-;;4-"5 9
g s oM " g

£3 3y
56 % &in M ; /
" * ..- n.* .4 ’ é? )

A 000aet SV 2:{
N Susan Hensley, City[Secret ’
LSS \ usan Hensley, Ci y(e/cl_f? ary ﬂ
ontgomery

I certify that the attached notice of meeting was po&\d_gn the bulletin board at City of Mot
City Hall, 101 Old Plantersville Road, Montgomery, Texas, on the 10" day of March 2017 at 1:50
o’clock p.m. T further certify that the following news media was notified of this meeting as stated

above: The Courier

This facility is wheelchair accessible and accessible parking spaces are available, Please contact the
City Secretary’s office at 936-597-6434 for further information or for special accommodations.




ITEM #1

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING

February 28, 2017

MONTGOMERY CITY COUNCIL

CALL TO ORDER

Mayor Kirk Jones declared a quorum was present, and called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m,

Present: Kirk Jones
John Champagne, Jr.
T.J. Wilkerson
Rebecca Huss

Dave McCorquodale

Absent: Jon Bickford

Also Present; Jack Yates

Larry Foerster

INVOCATION

T.J. Wilkerson gave the invocation.

Mayor

City Council Place # 2
City Council Place # 3
City Council Place # 4
City Council Place # 5

City Council Place # |

City Administrator
City Attorney

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO FLAGS

PUBLIC HEARING:

Convene into Public Hearing:

I. Forthe purpose of giving all interested persons the right to appear and be heard on the proposed

annexation by the City of Montgomery, Texas of the following described land: All that certain

14,5003 acre tract of land. more or less, situated in the John H. Corner Survey, Abstract No. 8,

Montgomerv County, Texas. (Second of two hearings)

Mayor Jones convened the Public Hearing at 6:01 p.m.



shensley
Typewritten Text

shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #1


Mr. L. A. Washington asked where the property in question was located. Mr, Shackleford,
City Engineer, advised that the property was located on the north side of SH 105, between
Stewart Creek Road and Lone Star Parkway. Mr. Shackleford said that this was the
undeveloped tract between where the northeast corner where Pizza Shack is being built, and is
the back northern piece of land. Mr. Shackleford said that there was a front piece of land,

approximately 300 feet deep that is already inside the City, and was annexed a year ago.

Mayor Jones asked if there were any other comments to be made and there were no more

comments made. Mayor Jones adjourned the Public Hearing at 6:03 p.m.

Reconvene inte Regular Session:

Mayor Jones reconvened into Regular Session at 6:03 p.m,

VISITOR/CITIZENS FORUM:

Any citizen with business not scheduled on the agenda may speak to the City Council. Prior to

speaking, each speaker must be recognized by the Mayor. Council may not discuss or take any action

on an item, but may place the issue on a future agenda. The number of speakers along with the time

allowed per speaker may be limited.

Mr. Philip LeFevre said that he wanted to discuss a couple of things, one being Jason Long, who went

to the Planning and Zoning Commission last night and asked for a variance on his parking lot. Mr.
LeFevre said that they actually have, as part of the HOA, architectural control, so they have a vested
interest, because there are other people who bought land there and they want to make sure that they

don’t get dust from the parking lot.

Mr. LeFevre said that their normal response would be to say no, do not give him a variance, but there
are extenuating circumstances here and he personally felt that the Planning and Zoning Commission
did the right thing. Mr. LeFevre said that he believed what the Commission said was that they would
give Mr. Long six (6) months to use a gravel parking lot, and under the City Engineer’s suggestion Mr.
Long has to stabilize the parking lot so that there is no dust. Mr. LeFevre said that if Mr, Long does
not get the parking lot done in six (6) months, then the City can remove the occupancy permit and
basically shut Mr. Long down, and there is a method of enforcement. Mr. LeFevre said that once the

HOA gives a variance, they have no method and can’t come back after them. Mr. LeFevre said that

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 2




he would like some comfort from the City that there is a hammer to get the work done. Mr. LeFevre
said that hopefully, when City Council considers the variance, as long as the City retains the hammer

to make sure that Mr, Long performs his part.

The second item that Mr. LeFevre, was one of equity, stating that Mr. Long is clearly tight on budget
and his project is a little bit cut of the box, but he liked that and felt that it was good for the City. Mr.
LeFevre said that this will give people something to do and it will be a productive and positive thing.
Mr. LeFevre said that he hoped that Mr. Long was very successful. Mr. LeFevre said that he felt that
it was behooven on everyone to try and make him successful up to a point, and then it is up to him.

Mr. LeFevre said that the City needs to be a good place to do business,

Mr. LeFevre said that he was a little concerned about two things, one, in the past the City has provided
MEDC funds for paving, and he knows that they are doing the Cozy Grape, which he felt was a good
decision, because the City uses the parking lot for other things as well. Mr. LeFevre said that in this
case, the City probably down the line will probably need Mr. Long’s parking lot when they do City
events, so there is a benefit to having the parking lot done properly. Mr. LeFevre said that he felt the
City should consider a consistent policy throughout, realistically if you are going to do the parking lot

for one person, you probably need to consider a strategy of how it effects everyone else.

Mr. LeFevre said that the second, and he felt it was the most important, when he built Clepper Street,
and put the utilities in, they put in the taps, so there is already a water tap and there should be a tap for
the sewer. Mr. LeFevre said there might not be one for the sewer. Mr. LeFevre said that when he and
Mr. Muckleroy were at the location, Mr. Muckleroy went down into the manhole and looked, and there
was a tap across the road. Mr. LeFevre said that the City’s formula is 200% percent of the cost. Mr.
LeFevre said the estimates that have come up using Gulf Utilities, and the price that they came up with

using the 200% percent was $27,000, which is just about the cost of his parking lot.

Mr. LeFevre said that if they had done the water, and if they find that they did the sewer, it would be
a $300 job to get someone to connect to the sewer on the other side of the road. Mr. LeFevre said that
even if they did not do the sewer, they could get Allen Burney who was the City utility contractor, to
probably do it for $3,500, the Gulf Utility estimate is $6,500. Mr. LeFevre said that you start to
compound the error, $6,500 times 200% percent you get to an awful lot of money. Mr. LeFevre said

that he felt if there was a chance to use an alternative contractor who the City approves of, and if that

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 3




contractor has experience with the City it would help the City. Mr. LeFevre said if Gulf Utility is
giving outrageous bids, then the City is probably paying outrageous bids, but when you multiply it by
200% percent, and the consumer is really getting stuck. Mr. LeFevre said that if there is an element of
competition for some of this work, the City will get well served along with the consumer getting well
served. Mr, LeFevre said that he could put in ten (10) sewer taps for $27,000. John Champagne asked
to confirm that they were paying $6,500 for the tap. Mr. LeFevre said that was the amount of the bid,
Rebecca Huss said that Mr, Muckleroy actually went out and got a better bid, so there is a contractor

that has the quality and reputation and a lower price who she believes is putting in the tap.

Mayor Jones said that since this was not an action item, they could not discuss the matter. Mr, LeFevre
said that he would like the City to review the process and to have a more efficient situation, because it
does not do the City any good to have people come in and find it so expensive to open a business. Mr.
LeFevre said this particular project should not be $27,000 to $30,000, and said that it is being priced
to a point that the business might fail.

Mayor Jones asked if this subject needed to be an action item in the future. Mr. Yates said that he is
already looking at other possibilities for tap, and in this particular case, he will just review it with Mr.

Muckleroy.

Mr. LeFevre said that where Mr. Muckleroy climbed down to check on whether there was a sewer tap,
it looked like there was already a tap in place, and the point is that there needs to be some flexibility if

there is already a sewer tap.

Mr. Tom Cronin advised that his issue was somewhat minor, and was just a suggestion for the City.

Mr. Cronin said that he implored the City, when there is a water issue, there has got to be good
communication. Mr. Cronin said that at 5:06 p.m. he called the City and the answering service picked
up and he asked them what was going on with the water in the City, because the water had been shut
off at three of his businesses. Mr. Cronin said that when he is operating restaurants, he has to make a

determination in a very short period of time, because legally he can’t operate without water,
Mr. Cronin said that the first lady with the answering service was very nice. Mr. Cronin said that when

he called back and he got a really snooty lady that said “I just got here, be patient, [ don’t know what

is going on” and immediately put him on hold. Mr. Cronin said that the City’s contractor called to clue

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 4




him in. Mr. Cronin said that what he is asking is, whether it is Mr. Muckleroy or somebody with the
City, could somebody call the service and let them know what is going on so that the businesses can
make a determination on whether they need to close for the evening or if it is only going to be a short
period of time. Mr. Cronin asked the City to improve their communication between what is going on
with the water department and the answering service, when you have a catastrophic incident like they

did this evening.

Rebecca Huss advised Mr. Yates that it might be easy to find a text service as well to provide that

information to everyone in the City,

CONSENT AGENDA:

2. Matters related to the approval of minutes for the Public Hearing and Regular Meeting held
on February 14, 2017,

Dave McCorquodale moved to approve the minutes as submitted. Rebecca Huss seconded

the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

3. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of a Proclamation proclaiming March

3,2017 as Texas-Tennessee Day in Montgomery, Texas.

Mayor Jones read the following Proclamation into the record:
PROCLAMATION

March 3, 2017 Texas-Tennessee Day in Montgomery, Texas
WHEREAS, the City of Montgomery, Texas City Council does hereby recognize and
welcome the Historians of Sam Houston to the City of Montgomery,; and
WHEREAS, the Texas —~Tennessee Historians will be traveling the Independence Trail that
includes Huntsville, Conroe and Montgomery; and
WHEREAS, Sam Houston, following in his late father’s footsteps, joined the military. His
valor in the War of 1812, in which he served under Andrew Jackson, earned him praise and

Jackson’s approval, and

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 5




WHEREAS, Sam Houston, was governor and U.S. Senator of the State of Tennessee, second
President of the Republic of Texas, a Governor of the State of Texas, and was one of the most
colorful figures of 19th-century America, and

WHEREAS, Sam Houston, through wisdom, valor and dedication was one of the most
significant heroes in the Texas fight for independence from Mexico; and

WHEREAS, Sam Houston, did spend time in the City of Montgomery during his travels
while conducting business with the Republic of Texas; and

WHEREAS, the City of Montgomery recognizes the shared admiration and respect for Sam
Houston throughout the Country, especially in the states of Texas and Tennessee.

NOW, THEREFORE, the Mayor and members of City Council of the City of Montgomery,
Texas, do hereby proclaim March 3, 2017 as Texas-Tennessee Day in Montgomery.

Rebecca Huss moved to approve the Proclamation as presented. Dave McCorquodale

seconded the motion.

Discussion: John Champagne asked who had requested the Proclamation. Mayor Jones said

that it was someone from the Historical Society who is involved in entertaining these visitors.

The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of a Proclamation Recognizing and

Honoring the Blinded Veterans Association on its 65" Anniversary of Representing Blinded

Veterans and their Families.

Mayor Jones read the following Proclamation into the record:

PROCLAMATION
A PROCLAMATION RECOGNIZING AND HONORING THE BLINDED VETERANS
ASSOCIATION ON ITS 65th ANNIVERSARY OF REPRESENTING BLINDED
VETERANS AND THEIR FAMILIES

WHEREAS, at 8:45 AM on March 28, 1945, 100 blinded members of the Armed Forces who

served in World War 11 formed the Blind Veterans Association at Avon “Old Farms” Army

Convalescent Hospital in Connecticut; and

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 6




WHEREAS, the founders of the Blind Veterans Association were a cross-section of heroes and
pioneers who not only shaped the rich history, philosophy and knowledge of education and
rehabilitation of the blind, but also provided insight into current and future challenges facing
the blind and engaged in continual advocacy efforts to ensure that services for all blinded

persons would be unique and specialized; and

WHEREAS, the Blinded Veterans Association was approved by Congressional Charter in
1958, and

WHEREAS, many people of the Unifed States recognize March 28 of each year as Blinded

Veterans Day,

NOW, THEREFORE, be it proclaimed by the City Council of the City of Montgomery Texas
that March 28, 2017 is hereby proclaimed Blind Veterans Day in the City of Monigomery in
appreciation for the efforts of the Blinded Veferans Association in improving the rehabilitation

services for those who gave their sight in defense of the liberty that America holds so dear.

John Champagne moved to approve the Proclamation as read. T.J. Wilkerson seconded the

motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

Mr. Jerry Killion, Post Adjutant with the American Legion, Dayton Memorial Post 512, and

with the Blinded Veterans Association was present to receive the Proclamation.

Mr. Killion addressed City Council and said that on behalf of the Blinded Veterans Association,
he wanted to thank them for recognizing March 28, 2017 as Blinded Veterans Day. Mr. Killion
said that he had handed out some information on how what to do when you meet a blind person

and how to intervene with that person and information on white cane awareness.

Mr. Killion stated that October was White Cane Awareness Month and they have activities and
events in October to educate the public on White Canes, Mr. Killion said that when you see a
White Cane, you know that person is blind or visually impaired, as he is. Mr. Killion said that

his vision is like looking through a straw,

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 7




Mr, Killion stated that more than 130,000 blind or visually impaired veterans now live among
us. Each about 6,000 veterans become newly blind or visually impaired, as age related macular
degeneration, retinitis pigmentosa, glaucoma and diabetic retinopathy affect their lives more
profoundly. In addition, some 13% percent of the evacuated, wounded service members in
Iraq and Afghanistan have suffered a serious eye injury of one type or another. The need for
educational services, counseling, represeniation and peer support offered by the Blinded
Veterans Association has never been greater. The BVA is committed to locating blinded
veterans who need the services that will help them overcome the challenges of blindness so
they can lead productive, fulfilling lives. The BVA’s leadership, membership and staff are
anxious to guide blinded veterans through the rehabilitation process and continue their work to
advocate for blinded veterans and their families in the public and private sectors, The BVA
fulfills its unique mission by promotion, access to technology and the practical use of the latest

research. Mr, Killion then thanked City Council.

5. Consideration and possible action on Department Reports.

A. Administrator’s Report - Mr. Yates presented his report to City Council. Mr. Yates

advised that in addition to his regular meetings, he had met with the all the docents

from Fernland, which was the first time for them to meet.

Mr. Yates advised that he had coordinated and worked with FEMA and the State
Emergency Management staff and the City Engineer regarding FEMA funds. Mr.
Yates advised that there were two things that were not included in his written report,
one being the landscape ordinance that was presented to the Planning and Zoning
Commission last night and they voted to recommend it to City Council. Mr, Yates
advised that the landscape ordinance was not on the agenda for tonight because the
City Attorney has not reviewed it yet. Mr. Yates then advised that the mobile home
park meter issue has been worked out, and he will be sending a letter out to the property

owner later this week.

B. Public Works Report - Mr. Yates presented the report to City Council because Mr.

Muckleroy was working on a large water leak. Mr, Yates advised that there were 755

visitors at Fernland and they provided 35 tours.

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 8




Rebecca Huss stated that she has been interested in status of the City’s sewer, in terms
of the amount of water entering it, and rain water entering the system and going through
the waste water treatment plant. Rebecca Huss said that she had spoken to Mr,
Muckleroy about a couple of options, one that Randy Burleigh is looking at the
pumpage data and options. Rebecca Huss asked if there were any funds that could be
found either for a subcontractor or specific amounts of televising that might identify
issues that they have not been able to find with the smoke testing that has been done to
date. Rebecca Huss said that, obviously, when they go through the utility operator
section there is another large amount of water that they are still paying for that is
entering the system that should be runoff somewhere else. Mr. Yates said that they
definitely have the funds available, he just needs to make sure that Mr. Muckleroy and
the City Engineer are sure about what they are doing and what will be accomplished.
John Champagne said that he would suggest, and it may very well be, to do the smoke
test and video again, but prior to making that decision, the City Engineers would weigh

in on what would be the best way.

John Champagne said that he had just heard a complaint from a constituent about a
complaint on Public Works customer service to our citizens in regard to the water
situation, and he would ask that Mr. Yates investigate whomever responded in such an
unprofessional way. John Champagne said that the other thing is, he is assuming this
water break is a function of the construction that is going on across from City Hall.
Mr. Yates said that was correct. John Champagne asked if there would be any recourse
in recovering the costs for the water break. Mr. Yates advised that they would be
charging them for the repair and the water loss. John Champagne said that was perfect

and thanked Mr. Yates,

Police Department Report — Chief James Napolitano presented his report to City

Council. Chief Napolitano advised that there were several items that he wanted to
bring up, advising that he, Sergeant Lehn, Officer Flores and Lt. Belmares spoke at the
Montgomery High School to the criminal justice group. Chief Napolitano said that
they had Family Game Night. Chief Napolitano congratulated Sergeant Lehn for her
work on the audit of the NCIC and TCIC computer through the State of Texas.

02/28/17 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 9




Chief Napolitano said that they have restructured the Police Department to make it a
little bit more efficient and get more out of the officers and improve communication.
Chief Napolitano congratulated to now Lieutenant Miguel Rosario and officially
pinned his Lieutenant bars on him. Chief Napolitano said that they have split the shifts
into two so that each shift has a Lieutenant. Chief Napolitano said that they never
know when someone on the street is going to use deadly force against the officers on
the street and the Lieutenants will have the duty of watching out for the officers on the

street. Mayor Jones congratulated Lieutenant Rosario,

Court Department Report — Ms. Rebecca Lehn, Court Administrator, presented her

report to City Council. Ms. Lehn said that the warrants will be even higher this month
because they are going through a warrant round up. Mayor Jones asked, historically,
how much effect does the warrant round up have on the finances. Ms. Lehn said that
it has a huge effect. Ms. Lehn said that the City does not do an amnesty program during
the warrant round up, like the City of Conroe, where they will dismiss the FTA charges
if the person appears and pays the fines, so their numbers are higher. Ms, Lehn said
that she would like to see the Judge consider amnesty in the future, because if might
help them clear their books. Ms. Lehn said that they will be working with Montgomery

County on the warrant roundup this week, beginning tomorrow night.

John Champagne asked what the amnesty program was based on. Ms, Lehn said that
the City of Conroe bases theirs on a prosecutor saying that they will make a motion to
dismiss their Failure to Appear charges if they appear during the specific time frame
and pay their other fines. Ms. Lehn said that while it does bring in revenue and it clears
the books, our judge does not ofter the amnesty program, so they see a high volume of
warrants being paid. Ms. Lehn said that already for this month there is a dramatic

increase from the last month, which they will see in the next report.
Rebecca Huss said if she was reading the report right, this is the lowest number of

citations in January for the last three years, Ms. Lehn said that was correct. John

Champagne congratulated Ms. Lehn on doing a great job on the audit.

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 10




Utility/Development Report — Mrs. Ashley Slaughter, Utility Billing Clerk, presented

her report to City Council. Mrs. Slaughter said that last month they had a total of 7
new water accounts, with 5 disconnects, so there were only two new activations. Mrs.

Slaughter said they had a total of 31 permits totaling $7.669.52.

Water Report — Mr. Michael Williams, with Gulf Utility, presented his report to City
Council. Mr. Williams advised that during the month they had 5 district alerts. Mr.
Williams said that they are working with Entergy to restore the power balance to Water
Plant 2 and some other power issues, because they do not have consistent 3-phase
power to the plant at this time. John Champagne asked whose fault it was that they did
not have the correct power to the plant. Mr. Williams said that it was Entergy’s fault,
and said that Entergy has acknowledged that they had some repairs that they have to

make to their lines.

Rebecca Huss said that they have been talking about the 3-phase power problems for
years, which was why they could not use Well No. 4 last summer. Mr. Williams said
that was correct. John Champagne asked if the City could generate an invoice for
Entergy for opportunity costs, something. Mr. Yates said that he had met with a
representative from Entergy two months ago, who said that they were working on the
3-phase line. John Champagne said that it is costing the City money and the City can’t

use the well because of Entergy.

Rebecca Huss said that Entergy has also not been responsive for other things, such as,
a tree that was on one of the power [ines to Well No. 2 that they knew about for weeks
and finally the City ended up cutting the tree down, when it was not really their
responsibility, but the City cared about service. Rebecca Huss said that she did not
know if they could switch representatives or push this up, because it seems like they
are talking about the same issues and the same lack of service monthly. Mr, Yates said

that he could press the issue with Entergy.
John Champagne asked if there was any legal recourse that the City could take against

Entergy. Mr. Foerster said that if the City has been damaged, and it is based on the

negligence or failure of Entergy to do something that they should have done, if it can

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 11




be established what those damages are, if they are real damages, they could file claims
in small claims court. Mr. Yates said that if the City is able to produce the water, he
was not sure what the damages would be. Mayor Jones said that Water Well 2 will be
more important for keeping pressure on the west side of the City. John Champagne
said that he thought he could quantify costs, in terms of customer service and down

time, he could get creative on this information.

Rebecca Huss asked if Mr, Yates knew of a customer service person that would respond
better and get better action versus what they have been getting. Mr. Ed Shackleford,
City Engineer, advised that he met a gentleman at a Conroe ISD breakfast a couple of
years ago, and he has been visiting with him regarding this information, who referred
them to a local manager. Mr. Shackleford said that they have been speaking to this
person for almost two years regarding Water Plant 2 and Water Well 3. Rebecca Huss
said that “no” is the answer to their question of another person. Mr. Shackleford said

that there was no one above Allen, unless they call the main office.

Rebecca Huss asked if Entergy was asking for a utility rate increase. Mr. Yates said
that Entergy just got a reduction in rate today, because their fuel costs were less so they
reduced the rate, but said that did not mean that they did not need to press the other
issue. Rebecca Huss said that the power issue does eventually burn out motors and
ends up costing real money. Mr. Shackleford said that was correct. Mr. Shackleford
said that one option might be to send a letter to the PUC with a copy to Entergy, letting
them know that the City is not happy.

Mayor Jones said that from what he is hearing from City Council tonight, and as long
as this has been going on, we need to escalate this into something to resolve the
problem. Rebecca Huss said that there has also been an issue on Old Plantersville

Road, which they have not gotten any satisfaction on ¢ither.

John Champagne asked Mr. Williams if he could put a number on this in terms of cost
to the City that has been incurred because of this problem, with the additional time and
effort that they have had to put into the matter. Mr. Williams said that he would

certainly look into the matter. John Champagne said that if he asked Mr. Williams,

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 12




right off the top of his head, is there a cost. Mr. Williams said that there is essentially
a cost to having bad electricity, call outs, equipment failures, which all adds up, so yes
there is a cost. John Champagne asked if Mr. Williams could report that information
to Mr. Yates. Mr. Williams said that he would report that information during their
conference call with Mr, Yates on Tuesday at 9 a.m. Mayor Jones asked if the City
has had to buy new equipment because of this problem. Mr. Shackleford said that they
have had to repair equipment. John Champagne said that they need to put a pencil to

this information.

Mr. Williams reported on the poor water quality call for brown water at Phil’s
Roadhouse, but it turned out to be an internal issue with their filter going to their tea
machine. Mr. Williams said that was the only water quality call that they have had
lately, and said the rest of the calls were high wet well calls. Mr. Williams advised that

Lift Station 9 had a ragging issue.

Mr, Williams said that Lift Station 4 had a high wet well, and the operator found both
pumps not engaging. Mr. Williams said that the phase monitor and contactors were
found to be burnt, possibly from an incoming power spike. Mr. Williams said that they
had to replace the phase monitor and contactors, and once that was done, the Lift

Station was back up and running.

M. Williams reported that the daily average flow for the month was 157,000 gallons,
which is 39% percent of'the permitted value, Mr. Williams said that the peak flow was
417,000 gallons, which as 104% percent above the permitted value. Mr. Williams said
that they have been working with the City to find a way to reduce the amount that they
are taking in when it rains. John Champagne commented that was a lot. Mr, Williams
said that he did a brief survey of a couple of the manholes and he immediately found a
lot of issues, and he could see a lot of water coming in through the manholes that need
to be resealed, or lines that are possibly broken, Mr, Williams advised that he had
reported all that information to the City. Rebecca Huss said that she thought that
manhole rehabilitation was on Jones and Carters long list of things that the City needed
to apply their funds to. Mr. Williams said that was correct, along with manholes, lines

and ditches and a lot of the manholes that were flush with the ground even though it

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 13




did have an inflow preventer in it, he notices a lot of dirt and sand inside the manhole
that is getting washed though between the ring and the inflow preventer, Mr. Williams
said if they raised the manhole a couple of inches they should see a slight difference in
the flows to the plant. John Champagne asked what the average amount of water
treated would be. Mr. Williams advised that the average would be 157,000 gallons.
John Champagne asked if that was 43% percent of the allotted amount. Mr. Williams
said that it would be 39% percent. Mayor Jones asked how much of that is just at the
plant itself, wide open catching water. Mr. Williams said that would probably be a
couple thousand gallons, it would not be significant or amount to 64% percent.
Rebecca Huss said that the higher the City’s average is, the sooner they will need to
start building their next sewage treatment plant. Mayor Jones said that they have been
working on this problem since he first got involved with the City. John Champagne
said that there has to be a large gaping hole. Mr. Williams said that one manhole that
he went to open had none of the rings sealed, so the whole thing just slid over. Rebecca
Huss said that was also a safety problem, Mr. Williams said that was correct. Mayor
Jones said that he saw on Mr. Muckleroy’s list that they grouted a manhole, and asked
if that was something that he was working on to stop the problem. Mr. Williams said
that was a possibility. Mr, Williams said that he has seen contractors run their bores

through manholes and not even know it, which will cause a lot of infiltration.

Mr. Williams said that their effluent monitoring, they are within their permitted values
with a total of 4,54 inches of rain this month, and on January 18, 2017 for the peak at

1.8 inches.

M. Williams stated that for the water report, they had a total of 97% percent accounted
for, with a total pumpage of 6.407 million gallons, flushing amount 160,000 galions
and 6.064 million gallons sold. Mr, Williams commented that since the new automatic
meters have been installed, which has been one year, they have averaged 96% percent
accountability versus the high 70°s before they replaced the meters. John Champagne

said the meters may pay for themselves one day.

Engineer’s Report — Mr. Ed Shackleford presented the report to City Council. M,

Shackleford advised that Mr. Chris Roznovsky was attending a meeting that TxDOT

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 14




was having this evening about SH 105 from Lone Star Parkway going west, to see what
they are proposing to do through the City of Montgomery. Mr. Shackleford said that
TxDOT has delayed the FM 149 project again, Mayor Jones said that he attended the
same meeting 10 years ago regarding SH 105.

Rebecca Huss said that she hoped Mr. Shackleford would highlight the Mobility Study,
which was about three months behind schedule. Mr. Shackleford said that they were
behind and there have been a few questions asked. Mr. Shackleford said that they are
getting closer to a final draft, and they need to sit down with representatives from the
two Comimissioner’s offices and make certain that they collect their input before they
bring it to City Council. Mr. Shackleford said that they should be bringing it to City

CouncH soon.

Mr, Shackleford advised that the permit renewals for the two sewer plants are in
process. Mr. Shackleford stated that all the subgrade work on Gardner Drive has been
done and the utilities are in. Pizza Shack contractors should start sometime after March
3, installing water and sewer lines beginning at the northeast corner of FM 2854 and
SH 105 and start heading east. Mr. Shackleford said that they have told the contractor,
since it is grant funding, that he needs to be prepared to not get in a big hurry for the

money because of the process that will be necessary to submit the invoices.

Mr. Shackleford advised that the KENROC Utility and Feasibility Study will come

before City Council at the next meeting,

Mr, Shackleford stated that the Villas of Mia Lago have been given comments on the
plats and construction drawings, which they are in the process of addressing. Mayor
Jones asked how many times the drawings go back and forth between the Engineer and
the contractor. Mr. Shackleford said they have seen as few as three times, depending
on who the engineering firm is, and as many as five to six times, again depending on
the engineering firm. Mayor Jones said that he was asking about this specific one and
whether it has been a long back and forth for the Villas of Mia Lago. Mr. Shackleford
said that his recollection is that they are at either three or four revisions. Rebecca Huss

said that she would assume that was like Mr. Fleming’s illustration where he has the

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 15




same comments that were addressed in the last revision that will show up in the third
and fourth revision. Mr. Shackleford said that was correct. Mr. Shackleford said that
any of their responses to the comments might generate a new comment on the reply,

but nothing new on the plan set.

Mr. Shackleford advised that Lone Star Bend extension and Lone Star East
improvement are nearing 90% percent completion. Those projects are coming along
nicely and they are interested in getting them out for bids shortly. Mr. Shackleford said
that besides the construction plans, they are also submitting technical specification and
bid quantities, and not only will their engineering group look at the information, but
their purchasing group will also look at the bid specs to make certain of each County
bid requirement, and then it will go to advertise for bids, Mr, Shackleford said that,
generally, 60 days after that they should have bids, and then a contractor on the ground
within 30 days from that date. Mr. Shackleford said that they were at least 4 ¥ months

out,

Mr. Shackleford said that they were still working on the Villas of Mia Lago

Development Agreement with the developer.

Mr. Shackleford stated that at the last meeting, they had brought the Certificates of
Acceptance for Terra Vista and Waterstone Section [I. Mr. Shackleford said they
remembered, before the Certificates of Acceptance were released, that the developer
still owes the City a fair amount of money for inspections, plan reviews and various
meetings that the developer had called to get status. They are working with the
developer and the engineer to get that collection so they can release the Certificates of
Acceptance. Mayor Jones asked what the status was and whether they were fighting
over numbers. Mr. Shackleford said that there was a difference of opinion on whether
those numbers should have been charged to the developer or not, which is in the
$42,000-$44,000 range. Rebecca Huss asked if those funds were to Jones and Carter
or to the City. Mr. Shackleford said that it was to the City, Mr. Yates said that the
balance was about $29,000, because they have already paid about $19,000 of the total.
Mr, Shackleford said that these were costs that the City incurred for new development

within the City.

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 16




Heritage Place Medical Center will have an action item on the agenda in the near future
about Houston Street and financial participation. McCoy’s offside sanitary sewer
extension contractor is out working and finding existing utilities that might be slightly

in conflict with his proposed lines, which they are working through.

Mr, Shackleford s"aid that the 33-acre Camillo tract, which is the tract on Stewart Creek
Road, has asked them to proceed with updating their Economic and Utility Feasibility
Study, which was done about 12-18 months ago. Mr. Shackleford said that as soon as

they pay their deposit, they will begin the update of the Study,

Dave McCorquodale asked about the Joint Mobility Study, with regard to when the
County Judge came and spoke to City Council, there was a lot of emphasis on north-
south and new north-south arteries. Dave McCorquodale asked who made the
determination and whether it was a joint effort between Montgomery County and
TxDOT, or when new lights are involved, is it strictly a TxDOT decision. Mr.
Shackleford said that it was strictly a TxDOT decision, which is based on a warrant
study that is done where the requirements are spelled out in the Texas Manual of
Uniform Traffic Code. Mr. Shackleford said that there were eight warrants to look at
and generally if you meet one of the warrants, a traffic signal is warranted. Mr.
Shackleford said that different entities like to make certain that they cover more bases
that just one of the warrants, such as, time delays, accidents and history, Dave
McCorquodale said that if the criteria for good business, or a particular business, was
access to the interstate, when you see a new light on SH 105 it is effectively lifting up
the City of Montgomery and moving it a little bit further west, because it takes a few
more minutes to get here. Dave McCorquodale said that if they add up the cumulative
effect of the light, then suddenly the City of Montgomery is not 12 miles away from
the Interstate, they are 30-45 minutes away, which could be a factor for a large business
needing that access. Mr. Shackleford said that something to keep in mind, the more
movements that occur in an intersection, the maximum delay is 90 seconds, can cause

more delays.

02/28/17 Cauncil Meeting Minutes - Page 17




Financial Report and Quarterly [nvestment Report —~ Mrs, Cathy Branco, Financial

Consultant, presented her report to City Council. Mrs. Branco advised that the City
had $2,470,939 funds available, and of those funds there is $1,030,446 funds invested.
Mrs, Branco said that some of the highlights are the general fund budget is in the deficit

of about $6,000, most of which is sales tax being less than what is expected.

Rebecca Huss asked Mrs. Branco if she could, without amending the budget, put in a
line item that would back out the Kroger funds, because they had talked about it at the
last meeting on how since Kroger is not coming in, they have to subtract about six
months’ worth of revenue, but then they have to also subtract about six months’ of
expected reimbursements. Rebecca Huss asked if that could be backed out of the
budget to give them a better idea on how their taxes are running versus non-Kroger
expectations. Mrs. Branco said that she could do that if she knew how much was
allotted for Kroger, she could back that out. Rebecca Huss said that it would make it

easier to see where they stand.

Mrs. Branco said that something that was not on their budget, but the City Engineer
was talking about was the receivables for the Feasibility Studies, where the expenses
have gone over the amount that was actually deposited. Mrs. Branco said that each
individual project deposits for a Feasibility Study, and then there are expenses that go
against those funds. Mors, Branco said that they are still waiting for the two $15,000
deposits for the Mobility Plan from Montgomery County Precincts 1 and 2. Mayor
Jones said that the City has paid on that project. Mr. Shackleford said that he was
preparing draft invoices for the City to send to Montgomery County to collect from the

two precincts. Mayor Jones thanked Mr. Shackleford.

Mrs. Branco advised that regarding debt service, all the administrative transfers have
been made for the quarter, which will show up on the next report. Mrs, Branco said
that they had just paid the March T Debt Service payments, in the amount of $411,358,
leaving a balance of $2,000 in the checking account and $2,402 in the investment
account.  Mrs. Branco said that according to the report from the Tax
Assessor/Collector, the City has receivables for taxes in the amount of $181,955 as of

January 31, 2017, and the next debt service payment due on April I will be covered.

02/28/17 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 18




Mrs, Branco said that the Utility fund, she was happy to say, is good on the budget for
$110,000.

Rebecca Huss said that the Quarterly Investment statement showed $50 that they made

from all that money in the bank, which is really pathetic.

Mayor Jones asked about the status of the Annual Audit. Mr, Yates said that the Audit
was complete and he thought that it would be presented either at the next meeting or
the meeting after that. Mrs. Branco said that she had not heard anything from the
Auditor. Mr, Yates said that he thought the presentation would be at the first meeting
in March. Mrs. Branco said that she hoped that she would see the Audit prior to City

Council seeing it.

Mr. Yates asked Mrs. Branco if her Quarterly Investment Report was part of her report.
Mrs. Branco asked Ms. Hensley, City Secretary, if the Report was in the Agenda Pack.
Ms. Hensley advised that it was in the Agenda Pack. Mrs. Branco said that she had not
looked at the Agenda Pack. Mrs. Branco advised that her Report had the Quarterly
Investment Report for City Council to refer to, showing the amount of interest was

earned, where the funds are invested and other related information.

Dave McCorquodale moved to accept the Departmental Reports as presented. T.J.

Wilkerson seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

6. Consideration and possible action to receive and accept the Certification of Unopposed

Candidates for the May 6, 2017 City of Montgomery General Election as presented by the City

Secretary.,

Ms. Hensley presented the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the May 6, 2017 City of
Montgomery General Election. Ms. Hensley advised that the Certificate states that all the
candidates that had filed were unopposed. Ms. Hensley advised that only the incumbents had

filed for re-election.
Rebecca Huss moved to accept the Certification of Unopposed Candidates for the May 6, 2017

City of Montgomery General Election as presented by the City Secretary. Dave McCorquodale

seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 19




7. Consideration and possible action regarding adoption of the following Ordinance:
AN ORDINANCE DECLARING UNOQPPOSED CANDIDATES IN THE MAY 6, 2017
CITY OF MONTGOMERY. TEXAS GENERAIL ELECTION ELECTED TO OFFICE:
CANCELING THE ELECTION: PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

Rebecca Huss moved to adopt the Ordinance as read. Dave McCorquodale seconded the

motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

8. Consideration and possible action reparding calling a public hearing regarding establishing a

zoning district for the land to be annexed, as described: all that certain 14.5003 acre tract of

land, more or less, situated in the John H. Corner Survey, Abstract No. 8, Montgomery County,

Texas.

Mr. Yates advised this would be for the initial zoning of the property being annexed, and the

public hearing will be held after the property has been annexed.
John Champagne moved to schedule the Public Hearing for March 28, 2017 Meeting at 6 p.m.,
and will follow the Planning and Zoning Commission Meeting that is set for March 27, 2017

at 6 p.m. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion, the motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

9. Consideration and possible action regarding Longview greens miniature golfing variance

request to allow pravel as a parking surface,

Mr. Yates advised that this was a request for a variance from Jason Long. Mr. Yates advised
that the Code requires the parking surface to be hard surfaced, with either asphalt or concrete.
Mr. Yates said that the owner, Jason Long, is asking for an undetermined period of time to
bring in enough revenue to pay for the resurfacing of the parking area. Mr. Yates said that the
way that this can be accomplished, would be if he received a temporary Certificate of
Occupancy (TCO) for up to six (6) months period of time, and then if not paved by the sixth
month anniversary of the TCO, the TCO would be removed and he would have to close his
business. Mr. Yates said the City Engineer has recommended a dust controlling agent to be

placed over the unpaved portion of the parking lot. Mr. Yates said last night the Planning and

02/28/17 Councit Meeting Minutes - Page 20




Zoning Commission reviewed this information and recommended the approval of the variance
for a six month period of time, with the dust control, and they also mentioned that they wanted
Mr. Yates to make sure that there was enough parking spaces for this facility. Mr. Yates said

that he did not think that would be a problem.

Rebecca Huss commented that this propetty is essentially part of a POA, and asked if that was
correct. Mr. Yates advised that was correct. Rebecca Huss said that she was uncomfortable
with the City weighing in on something that is essentially a dispute between a landowner and
their POA. Rebecca Huss said that Mr, LeFevre in asking them to do this for six months or for
however long, he is asking the City of being in the business of being the hammer and do the
work. Rebecca Huss said that she did not think that anyone in the Buffalo Springs POA would
want one of their neighbors to come to the City and ask for a variance for something that they
have not been able to work out with the POA. Rebecca Huss said that she felt that it was a
separate agreement between the two of them and the City should not be involved. Mayor Jones

said that the City’s Subdivision Ordinance requires that the parking lot be paved.

Dave McCorquodale asked for to clarify as to whether or not that particular ordinance was in
effect when the PDD was adopted, because Mr. LeFevre has stated that his PDD froze the
ordinances at the time the PDD was signed. Mr. Shackleford said that was in 2003. Mayor
Jones said that actually he did not think that it was, but he did not know for a fact, but he was
pretty sure that came later. Mr. Yates said that was the Subdivision Ordinance, not necessarily
the Zoning Ordinance, and this is out of the Zoning Ordinance. Dave McCorquodale said that
Mz, LeFevre stated that the rules that were in place were frozen exactly like it was back when
the PDD was adopted and those were the rules that he had to follow. Mayor Jones said if that
is the case, then if the rule was there when they adopted the PDD then the City would have a
say, but if it was not, then if would fall back on Mr. LeFevre. Mr. Shackleford said that they

were going to try and pull up the information for 2003,

Rebecca Huss said that Mr. LeFevre is asking them to hold the developer for six months, and
then be the bad guy and shut them down if they don’t have the money to do the parking lot,
which is not the City’s job. Rebecca Huss said if Mr. LeFevre wants to have a variance, then
he needs to decide yes or no, and not have the City do all the work. Mayor Jones said that this

is a technicality, and he thinks that all parties involved want the parking lot to be paved.

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 21




Rebecca Huss said that if you look back at what has happened with the Barnes building, where
they have been in a similar situation, and they had to get variances just to get the job done, and
they are still waiting for completion of the project. Mayor Jones said if they don’t really have
a dog in the fight, Mr. LeFevre is just wanting the City to be his hammer. Rebecca Huss said
that Mr. LeFevre said that he wanted the City to be his hammer because he does not have one.
Rebecca Huss said that Mr. LeFevre needs to decide. John Champagne said that the POA, as
he understands it, he is the POA, and he can either give the variance or not give it. Rebecca
Huss said that Mr, LeFevre could enter into a separate legal agreement that says that they give
legal permission to do this in accordance with City Ordinances for a specific number of months,

which would be the hammer as a contract,

Dave McCorquodale asked Mr. Foerster if there were rules with a PDD like deed restrictions
that are written so that when you buy the land you buy it with the restrictions. Mr. Foerster
said that he would expect that there would be, but said that he had not seen his document so he
could not say. Mr. Foerster said that the issue is whether the City wants to grant a variance to
the Zoning Ordinance tonight or defer it until they get more information. Mayor Jones asked
what would happen if they granted the variance, but they really did not have the right to grant
the variance. Mr. Foerster said that he thought the City had the right to grant the variance, for
six months or a year, John Champagne asked if the City had mandated that the Cowboy Church
pave their additional parking lot. Mr. Foerster said that was before his time with the City.
Dave McCorquodale said that they are not part of the PDD, which states that the only rules that
the City is allowed to enforce on Mr. LeFevre’s land is what was on the books at the time the

PDD was adopted.

John Champagne moved to table this item, because there has been no research done on the

information. Rebecca Huss seconded the motion.

Discussion: Mayor Jones asked what the delay of the decision does to the process for Mr.
Long. Mr. Long said that he would like to identify costs and when it is going to hit his books,
six month or 12 months. Mayor Jones asked if City Council was favorable to granting the
variance, but that decision can’t be made until later, what does that do to Mr. Long completing
his project and would it hinder him. Mayor Jones asked how making the decision in two weeks

at their next meeting and how that would fit into his construction plans. Mr. Long said that the

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 22




bank where he is securing the funding for construction would like an answer to this because it
does impact the loan. Mr. Long said that he had told the bank that he would be attending the
meetings to get some resolution to the matter. Mayor Jones said that several of the interested
parties, Mr, LeFevre being one of them, says that he is in favor of the variance, and the Planning
and Zoning Commission is in favor of the variance, but this body has not decided. John
Champagne said that they were not sure that they have the right to decide. Rebecca Huss said
that Mr. Long was only moving dirt, so it is not like they are delaying the opening because he
does not have a parking lot. Rebecca Huss said that the opening has to be more than two weeks
out, so they would not put in the final paving before the next Council Meeting, John
Champagne said that he felt Mr. Long’s immediate solution to this would be to have an
agreement with the person that he bought the property from. John Champagne said that,
assuming that the Ordinance is in place, they would probably take Planning and Zoning
Commission’s recommendation for the six months. Rebecca Huss said that she would have
hesitation on being involved with any POA issue that should be handled by the POA. Mayor

Jones said that is why they are tabling the matter, to see if they have any right to be involved.

Mayor Jones asked if they could get an answer within two weeks for the next meeting. Mr.
Foerster said that they could get that information. John Champagne said that Mr, LeFevre had
brought up the tap fee and asked for the amount. Rebecca Huss said that it was $27,000, and
MEDC put $15,000 into the account toward that fee. John Champagne said that they could
consider a loan as an option. Rebecca Huss said that she did not think that was the best idea.
Mayor Jones said that whatever happens, should happen as quickly as possible and he would
like to say that this is a potentially great project that he would sure like to see be successful,
Mi. Yates said that if it turns out that the POA is the answer, then he will report back to City
Council and Mr. Long, and it will be based on the City Attorney’s opinion, which could happen
in the next day or two. John Champagne said that Mr, Long might want to consider bringing
up what he just said to Mr. LeFevre, because he brought up the water/sewer tap costs. Mr.
Yates said that he needed to review the tap fees and what is being charged. Rebecca Huss said
that Mr. Muckleroy advised her that the sewer tap includes the manhole, which the City
requires for all commercial taps. John Champagne said that they have to be consistent on what

is being charged. Mr. Yates will check the rate information.

The motion carried unanimously. (4-0)

02/28/17 Council Meeting Minutes - Page 23







Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM #2

Meeting Date: March 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:

Department:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator Exhibits: Feasibility Report e

Date Prepared: March 8, 2017

This is a study regarding the utility service feasibility of the KENROC
Development to the city,

This is the utility and service feasibility study for the KENROC Development on
the east side of the city, immediately west of Pizza Shack.

Water Summary — On page one of the Study the report states the City has a
595,000 gallon per day capacity with a few minutes approximate 339,000 gallons
used per day during the summer months. This development will use
approximately 40,000 gallons per day. The city currently how however has
committed 97% of its existing capacity including to platted developments. The
study recommends beginning to develop future water capacity increase, Water
lines are appropriate and good.

Sewer Summary -- The city sewer plant capacity of 400 gallons per day with an
approximate usage per day of 229,500 gallons per day. The city has unallocated
capacity available. The sewer lines are appropriate in good- with the notation of
the work needed to be done at lift station #1 (that is about to happen with the
TWDB funding)

Drainage and Paving -- — All the streets and drainage easements arc on private
property-- but must be designed by the developer and reviewed by the city. No
problems foreseen.

Reccomendation
Consider and adopt the Study as presented

Approved By )
City Administrator | Jack Yates | Date: March 8, 2017 ]

|



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #2























VICINITY MAP

Scale: 1 inch equals 2 miles

LEGEND

City of Maontgamery
City Limits

= 20-Ac Tract

- MCAD Parcel

e P

2017031°AcKenRoc

¥ DevelopmentijTract

User Name: CEH

Date: 2/8/2017

20-AC KENROC
DEVELOPMENT
TRACT

CITY OF MONTGOMERY

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS

Project Number: W5841-1017-00

S

1Tinch equals 300 feet

Disclaimer: This product is offered for informational purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable for legal, engineering,
or surveying purposes. It does not represent an on-the-ground
survey and represents only the approximate relative locaticn of
property, governmental and/or political boundaries or related
facilities to said boundary. No express warranties are made by
Jones & Carter, Inc. concerning the accuracy, completeness,
reliability, or usability of the information included within this exhibit.

JONES|CARTER

“Texas Board of Professional Engineers Registration No. F-439

Path: E:\Projects\Districts\CityOfMontgomery\PRITS\Feas_20Ac_KenRoc_Tract_11x17.mxd











































Table 1.1 Maximum Assessable Impact Fee for Commonly Used Meters

Equivalent Single Maximum Maximum Maximum
Meter Maximum Family Assessable Assessable |Assessable Fee
Size Flow (GPM) |Connection (ESFC)|  water Fee |Wastewater Fee|  ($/ESFC)
(S/ESFC) (S/ESFC)
5/8” 15 1.00 $1,252 $2,793 $4,045
3/4” 25 1.67 $2,091 $4,664 $6,756
17 40 2.67 $3,343 $7,457 $10,801
11/2” 120 8.00 $10,018 $22,345 $32,362
2" 170 11.33 $14,187 $31,645 $45,833
3” 350 23.33 $29 214 $65,162 $94,376
4 600 40.00 $50,088 $111,723 $161,811
6" 1,200 80.00 $100,176 $223,445 $323,621
8” 1,800 120.00 $150,264 $335,168 $485,432




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM #3

Budgeted Amount:
Meeting Date: March 14, 2017
Department:

Exhibits: Application letter from Jason
Prepared By: Jack Yates Long,

City Administrator Engineer’s memo
Date Prepared: March 9, 2017

A variance request to allow a gravel parking surface at Longview Greens
Miniature Golfing development.

From City Attorney Larry Foerster:

RE: City paving requirements for parking on commercial property in the
Lefevre Buffalo Springs development when the Lefevre development
agreement was executed in 2004; and the requested paved parking variance
to the City Subdivision ordinance

In 2004, the City Subdivision regulations (Section 78-100 of the Code of
Ordinances) provided that:

(b) Commercial lots. Each lot plan for business or commercial use shall have off-
street parking at a ratio of not less than 1.5 square feet of parking for cach one
square foot of gross building area.

Unlike residential lots that required a paved surface, no such City paving
requirement was made for commercial parking lots in 2004. However, under the
current Subdivision ordinance at section 78-96, all commercial parking must be
paved.

The Lefevre development agreement with the City provides that all private
improvements must conform to city ordinances (Section 3.05). Therefore, |



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #3


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

The Lefevre development agreement with the City provides that all private
improvements must conform to city ordinances (Section 3.05), Therefore, I
believe the current Subdivision ordinance is applicable as to commercial paved
parking.

The Lefevre Property commercial covenants at Section 3.7 requires all
commercial parking to be paved with asphalt or concrete as a dust-free parking
lot. Mr. Lefevre therefore may enforce the paved parking requirements in his
covenants or grant a waiver to that requirement.

The Lefevre development agreement provided at Section 3.01 that any City
ordinance, then or in the future, that conflicts with the development agreement
will not be enforced by the City and that the provisions of the development
agreement govern the development of Mr. Lefevre ‘s property. Under

the circumstances, I don’t see anything in the Lefevre development agreement
that prohibits the City from enforcing its current requirement for paved
commercial parking,

MY RECOMMENDATION:

In view of the language at Section 3.05 of the development agreement, and the
fact that the City now requires commercial parking to be paved, I recommend
that the City Council should consider whether to grant a variance to paved
parking as found in Section 78-96 of its Subdivision Ordinance for some limited
period of time. You have the option of granting the variance or deciding not to
grant the variance.

Mr. Lefevre has no objection to a six-month variance. After six months, either
the City may enforce its ordinance or Mr. Lefevre can enforce his restrictive
covenant,

Two other thoughts:

I. You could require the applicant to provide a performance bond as a
condition of granting the variance, but this might be cost-prohibitive and
defeat his purpose of requesting a variance for six months.

2. You could also grant a 6-month Certificate of Occupancy with the
understanding that if the parking lot is not paved in 6-months, the
miniature golf course operation will be shut down until the parking lot is
completed or the City grants an extension,




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Recomendation

To approve a variance of either 6 or 12 months with a Temporary Certificate of
Occupancy granted stating that if the parking lot is not paved in that time period
the business will lose its Certificate of Occupancy and that a dust control agent
satisfactory to the city engineer be placed on the gravel area when completed and
prior to opening for business.

Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 9, 2017




Date: February 11, 2017

TO:  Planning and Zoning Commission
City of Montgomery
101 Old Plantersville Road
Montgomery, Texas 77356

ATTN.: Mr, Jack Yates / Mr, Chris Roznovsky, P.E.
RE: Longview Greens Mininture Golfing Variance Request

Good day to you, The proposed site plan being submitted for the development of Longview Miniature
Golf requires a variance due fo a conflict of parking lot surface material. According to the City of
Montgomery Ordinance Section 78-96 (b), the surface is required to be paved with asphalt or concrete;
however, the owner is requesting a temporary allowance for his diive and parking to utilize crushed

concrete. The variance justifications ave as follows:

L. The property owner is proposing a family-owned small business miniature golf course. The owner is
self-financing the majority of the project, and the added immediate cost of asphalt will put this project
out of reach for the near future,

2. The owner will, in good faith, install the required asphalt as soon as it is feasible. The variance for a
temporary allowance of this altemate surface will allow for the owner to open his business and begin
to bring in revenue in order to pay for the resurfacing of the parking arca.

If you have any questions or require further information.prior to the meeting, please do not hesitatc to call
or email,

Thanle you,

e

Jason.long@commscope.com / 815.514.0420

Longview Miniature Golf Varlance Request Letter
271117 Pageiof1




6701 New Tralls Drive, Sulte 200

The Woodiands, Texas 77381-4241

JONESBICARTER Tel: 281,363.4039
Fax: 281,363.3459

wwy jonescarler.com

February 21, 2017

The Planning and Zoning Commission
City of Montgomery

101 Qld Plantersviile Road
Montgomery, Texas 77316

Re: Variance Request — Parking Lot and Driveway Paving Requirement
Longvlew Greens Miniature Golf
City of Montgomery

Commission Members:

Sectfon 78-36{b) of the City of Montgomery Code of Ordinances specifies any parking lots ar driveways,
excluding single family residential, shall he paved in concrete or asphalt.

» The Developer is requesting a varlance from the requirement that the parking surface is to
be paved with asphalt or concrete due to the cost of paving.

Enclosed you will find a request for variance as submitted by the property owner, Mr. lason Long. We
offer no objectlon to the requested varlance. However, It Is Important to note the unpaved parking lot
has the potentlal to produce dust during dry periods with heavy traffic. The owner should apply a dust
control agent over the unpaved areas to reduce the amount of dust produced. We would also
recommend the owner be required to pave the portion of the driveway located within the right-of-way
of Clepper Street to reduce the chance of dust and rocks entering the roadway. Approval of the

" requested varlance does not constitute plan approval and oniy allows the Developer to further refine
the proposed site plan and construction drawings which will require the full review and approval of City
Staff before any constructlon may commence.

if you have any questions or comments, please contact, Chris Roznavsky, and or myseif,

Sincerely,

v
Ed Shackelford, P.E.

Engineer for the City

EHS/cvr
P:\PROJECTS\W5841 - City of Montgornery\W5841-0900-00 General Consultatlon\2017\P&2 Reports\2.27,17\Longview Greens Min| Golf,
Varlance Request-P&Z Opinfon.doc

Enclosures: Longview Greens Minfature Golf — Variance Request
' Longview Greens Miniature Golf — Preliminary Site Plan
cc/enc: The Honorable Mayor and City Councll, City of Montgomery

Mr. Jack Yates — City of Montgomery, City Administrator
Ms. Susan Hensley— City of Montgomery, Clty Secretary
Mr. Larry Foerster — Darden, Fowler & Creighton, City Attorney

Texas Board of Professlonn) Engineers Reglstration No, F-438 | Texas Boasd of Professtonal Land Suvaying Registration No, 10048106




o ——

i ]
: \
, ! fro
Py s i
A_ R Vst 0 7 M m M m ﬂ q.
, 18 1y 8
Fi 1 119 Sl 2 Ed -
£ [ ]
| i g1 £
i r =1 g
! ! A
1 B
H. “mﬁ i Uren whevoi, mc
D1 ¥| eovteEa
H g1 o TN
T el 2
P 1L Do .I.“ =
et [} i
PN AT Tk
M T a
HE ‘ i
H T
¢ T
1 1
F |
t | oo
. i _ TV
T %t T ]
=y 1 - i
mm i {n!.m ;
EL | H !
~aT
e W e 1 g “
== - - | s = =t
T~ ] E.mm t m o
;! o £ o
- ] — ¥ £
v e 5 N
EE] i
. CW 1 w !
- T W g SIS s e s oo e
- - MITCROEED T MG MARDY MdUBCat MOTRCLL
-3, % e T T i i ey o, P o, e
I ok 13 pramieihag it
L5 Ty o
3.2 = AAR TGN, OG5 I This
A TR s SR
—=5 ~ 23IE 0300 . TIFCTG Sy
”... - 1 BT e  wr Gt

b Mt} Stk kAN ——— ]

Ty & ety
EUSITRNL FORO RO
Bkd 2 SOOATRE B EmTE ST
Loy =% t

7 gn
O ieal
ey

y SR T T T T T T e g
AT

b b ey 4 et mamg r ek T 1 Tt ) g gy

Z e
./lﬁ L] TEE M EwDriOns el
| 1] e o uocaom SADET S QO SRR
] 7
S _SCRUBNINSE
BT Acome T T =o  Aor
P -t _ [ A e TR
AR o e e w1
ﬂ e T -
i i
H
11
{1 T I -




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #4
Budgeted Amount: As noted in
Meeting Date: March 14, 2017 below memo
Department:
Prepared By: Jack Yates Exhibits: Bridge Repair Report from
City Administrator Jones/Carter
Date Prepared: March 9, 2017

( This is a proposal of repair work needed at the Buffalo Springs bridge

Attached is the Engineer’s Buffalo Springs Bridge Repair Report.

In brief summary the report states--- that the evaluated various options for
stabilizing the soils and protecting the bridge abutment under the bridge
including gabion baskets however they are recommending concrete slope paving
as the most of the cost-effective method of repair. They also recommend the city
install storm sewer drop manholes at the top of each corner of the bridge sized
for a 100 year flood frequency event. The project also includes the temporary
bypassing of the existing sanitary sewer lift station on the north side of the bridge
and the reinstalling of the sanitary sewer line that was exposed by the erosion.

The estimated cost to complete the recommended repairs is $1,363,000.

Remember--- FEMA has said that they will accept the engineer’s proposal. So
that puts the funding at $1 million from FEMA (75%), $335,000 from CDBG
disaster relief fund grant and $28,000 out of the city funds.

The report also states at the end of its third paragraph, on page 1, that additional
easements/right-of-way may be needed to obtain from the adjacent property
owners to complete this construction of the proposed improvements.

My recommendation is, that the City Council will accept the report and accept
the project and that the Council will authorize plans and specifications to begin
so that bidding can happen as soon as possible.



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #4


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

In this case "soon as possible" is that the award cannot happen until we have at
least the FEMA funds in hand.

Hopefully within two months we will have the FEMA money in our hands and
also the Disaster Relief Grant can happen in the next two months.

So, a scenario for timing is:

March 14 -- approve the project as proposed, authorize bidding of project. - by
Council

March 14 - May st Engineer prepares detailed plans/specs, produces bid
package

May 1 -- have project under way of bidding, expecting FEMA funds soon.
June 1 -~ have FEMA and Disaster Relief grants in hand, award bid

July 1 -- have work beginning to repair with a 60 day completion schedule.
September 1 -- Open bridge for public use

Reccomendation
Consider and approve project as desired.

P —
City Administrator

Jack Yates Date: March 9, 2017
















PRELIMINARY CONSTRUCTION COST ESTIMATE
FOR
BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE EMBANKMENT REHABILITATION
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS
March 8, 2017

ltem
No. Description

1. Move-in, Bonds & Insurance

Slope Paving

2.  Remove Existing Slope Paving

Excavation & Haul Offsite

3

4. Backfill & Channel Grading

5. Storm Sewer Inlets and Drop Manholes
6. Concrete Retaining Wall/Bulk Head

7. Replace Concrete Slope Paving

Bridge Approach Slabs

8. Remove Existing Concrete Approach Slabs
9.  Backfill Abutments
10. Replace Concrete Approach Slabs

Asphalt Roadway and Guard Rail

11. Remove Existing Guard Rail
12. Remove Existing Asphalt
13. Repair Base and Shoulders
14. Replace Asphalt Roadway
15. Replace Guard Rail

Miscellaneous Items

16. Sanitary Sewer Force Main Backfill
17. SWPP

18. Turf Establishment

19. Force Main Bypass

20. Construction Staking

JONES|CARTER

Total

100,000

45,000

80,000
30,000
150,000
125,000
300,000

15,000
25,000
62,000

6,000
7,000
18,000
32,000
30,000

7,000
10,000
15,000
15,000

5,000

Texas Board of Prafessional Engineers Reqgistration No F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100



(3)

Texas Board of Prafessional Engineers Reqgistration No F-439 | Texas Board of Professional Land Surveying Registration No. 10046100

Subtotal $ 1,077,000
Contingencies (10%) 108,000 ©

Engineering, Topographic Surveying, and Materials Testing 178,000 ©)
TOTAL $ 1,363,000

Source of Funding
FEMA (75% Contribution up to $1,000,000) $ 1,000,000
CDBG Funds (Up to $335,000) 335,000
City Contribution 28,000
Total S 1,363,000

Includes the removal and disposal of debris and material from within the project limits.
Additional item to mitigate the effect of the overland sheet flow on the bridge. This item
includes the installation of two manholes, two junction boxes, four safety end
treatments, and reinforced concrete pipe ranging from 24” to 54” in diameter.

A portion of the work included in this item is related to mitigation. The estimated cost to
replace the existing bulkhead with the same is $50,000. This item includes the
installation of a 12" thick reinforced concrete retaining wall/bulkhead at the end of the
slope paving in lieu of the wooden bulkhead.

A portion of the work including in this item is related to mitigation. The estimated cost to
replace the existing slop paving per the original design is approximately $200,000. The
proposed slope paving is planned to have a modified design to offer additional
protection to the bridge and roadway. This item includes the installation of reinforced
concrete slope paving on the side slopes and along the channel bottom.

Contingencies include a 10% cost for additional, unseen, and future costs from time of
proposal.

Includes engineering, surveying, construction administration, field project
representation, reproduction, and geotechnical testing.

This estimate represents my best judgement as a design professional familiar with the
construction industry. Jones|Carter has no control over the cost of labor, materials, or
equipment; over the Contractor's methods of determining bid prices; or over
competitive bidding or market conditions. Accordingly, we cannot and do not guarantee
that bids will not vary from this cost estimate.

JONES|CARTER



Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #5
Budgeted Amount:

Meeting Date: March 14, 2017

Department:

Prepared By: Jack Yates Exhibits:

City Administrator
Date Prepared: March 9, 2017

Presentation of Amy Font — — regarding Buffalo Springs Bridge repair

Mrs. Font is concerned about the bridge repair and asked to be on the agenda.

Mrs. Font is a Waterstone subdivision property owner located next to the canal,
Mrs. Font realizes that the dredging of the canal is not a city responsibility but
sees the city as a catalyst to get Mr. Bowen and Mr. LeFevre to act.

She also expressed concern about the driving surface of Plez Morgan. (Please
Morgan is getting quite a bit more traffic now as the  detour route for Buffalo
Springs around the bridge, and probably will require some work after the repair
of the bridge, but for now continues to be a satisfactory road detour route)

Recomendation
Consider the comments — — not an action item.

Approved By

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 9, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #5


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM #6

Meeting Date: February 28, 2017 Budgeted Amount;
Department:

Exhibits: letter from MCAD requesting
verification of Exemption Information,
Exemption Alternatives,
Prepared By: Jack Yates list of other

City Administrator entities exemptions provided
Date Prepared: February 17, 2017

Consideration of tax exemptions.

This is a request from the tax appraiser asking if you want to give a homestead exemption to
over 635 years of age or a disability exemption -- and how much of an exemption if you want to
give one. As shown on the appraisal District sheet the exemptions currently in place are $6000
for over 65 and $12,000 for those who are disabled.

The Exemption Alternatives sheet shows how much the local property tax effect would be
depending on the amount of the exemption times the number of people eligible for such an
exemption.

The Exemptions have no effect on this years taxes, they are effective on next years
calculations.

Consider if you want to add to, or subtract from the present exemptions.

Approved By

City Administrator Jack Yates Date: February 17, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #6 








EXEMPTION ALTERNATIVES

2017 ‘present exemptions
Amount Tax amount Homestead QOver 65 Disabled Total
Qualifiers 227 80 7

53,000 $12.47 52,830 5997 587 $3,914
§5,000 520.78 54,716 51,662 5145 $6,523
56,000 $24.93 55,659 5175 57,828
$7,000 $29.09 56,602 52,327 5204 $9,133
58,000 $33.24 $7,545 $2,659 $233 $10,437
$9,000 $37.40 58,489 52,992 5262 $11,742
$10,000 541.55 59,432 53,324 5291 $13,047
$11,000 $45.71 $10,375 53,656 5320 514,351
512,000 549.86 511,318 53,989 $15,656
§ 13,000 $54.02 512,261 $4,321 5378 $16,961
$14,000 $58.17 $13,205 $4,654 $407 $18,265

$15,000 $62.33 514,148 54,986 5436 $19,570




Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

ITEM #7

Budgeted Amount: $3,000. more
income for Fernland Park

Meeting Date: March 14, 2017
Department;:

Exhibits:

Prepared By: Jack Yates
City Administrator
Date Prepared: March 9, 2017

This is a proposal to assess a $100 per year photography permit for use at
Fernland Historic Park

I understand that the issue of charging photographers to use Fernland Historic
Park has long been a desire. My understanding is that the problem was how to
determine how the payment would be made. Recent developments in the Website
and Google environment now allow people to pay over the Internet without
having to come to the City Hall and without the Docents at Fernland having to
handle any money (which they are opposed to doing for fear of crime).

Altached is a list of known photographers who regularly use Fernland as a
photographic site for their professional activities. The intent is to contact each of
these people with an application for the photographers permit and for Docents at
the Park to ask photographers to get a permit, then the photographers pay the fee
and receive a physical permit.

As to enforcement of this permit requirement the Docents will speak with
photographer’s using the park — however a penalty of a fine or non-use of the
park would require an ordinance that I am not proposing now. We expect to get
satisfactory compliance from the photographers.

Ashley Slaughter has been very helpful in the planning for how this payment
could happen over the Internet and in person at City Hall.



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #7


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

Recomendation
To approve a $100 annual permit for professional photographers at Fernland
Park.

Approved By

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 9, 2017




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM#8
Meeting Date: March 14, 2017 Budgeted Amount:
Department:
Exhibits: Resolution,
TML information,
2016 Effective /Roll Back Tax Rate
Worksheet,
Rollback tax rate. Effective Tax Rate
Prepared By: Jack Yates defined
City Administrator
Date Prepared: March §, 2017

This is a Resolution opposing S. B. 2 which would lower the property tax rollback rate from
8% to 4%, with an election required to approve an increase more than 4%

This is not and has not been a problem for the City. And going back over the files I cannot see
when we exceeded the rollback rate. The rollback rate is essentially defined as our tax rate
allowed following a calculation that includes new growth assessments and the previous tax
years rate. For instance for the current year the city could have assessed a property tax rate of
.5583 tax rate grant rather than the .4155 that is the tax rate, That “gap” between the allowed
rollback rate and actual tax rate will probably continue to widen as the city growth occurs.

However S. B. 2 is restrictive upon cities and may be worthwhile for you to oppose.
An election, if required, to approve a more than 4% roliback rate would cost approximately
$16,000.

Reccomendation
Consider and take whatever action you would like on the Resolution.

City Administrator Jack Yates Date: March 8, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM#8


RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY REGARDING
OPPOSITION TO S.B. 2 AND REQUESTING SENATOR ROBERT
NICHOLS TO VOTE AGAINST THE MEASURE.

WHEREAS, review of Senate Bill 2 proposed by Senator Paul Bettancourt reveals items believed
to be detrimental to City government; and

WHEREAS, said Bill seeks to reduce a City’s ability to increase property tax revenue to fund
vital and necessary infrastructure maintenance and improvements, thereby creating a potentially
dangerous lack of city equipment and services and posing a threat to the public’s health and safety;

WHEREAS, said Bill seeks to impose a provision that should the taxing entity find it necessary
to exceed the 4% revenue cap to fund operations or capital improvements, a special election will
be required for voter approval, thereby creating additional expense for the taxing entity;

WHEREAS, this proposed Bill would provide no meaningful tax relief for the citizens of
Montgomery;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the governing body of the City of Montgomery,
Texas, that a request by made of our Senator, Robert Nichols, to vote AGAINST this measure
when, and if, it reaches a vote on the Senate Floor,

Passed and adopted the 14" day of March, 2017.

Mayor Kirk Jones

ATTEST:

City Secretary, Susan Hensley




S.B. 2 (Bettencourt) — Revenue Cap: of primary importance to cities, the bill would:

’fW\L - p\auiv_v’ a% S G Z KJ\QL

lower the property tax rollback rate from eight percent to four percent, with an exception
for a taxing unit located in an area declared a disaster area by the governor or president of
the United States during the current tax year;

require a taxing unit to hold a ratification election on the November uniform election date
of the applicable year in order to adopt a tax rate that exceeds the four-percent rollback
rate (as opposed to current law, which only requires an election if a petition is received
from the citizens); and

make numerous calendar changes to the property tax appraisal, collection, and rate-
setting process in order to have property tax ratification elections on the November
uniform election date.

Additionally ~ and more specifically - the bill would:

1.

require the comptroller to appoint a property tax administration advisory board to make
recommendations to the comptroller regarding state administration of property taxation
and state oversight of appraisal districts and local tax offices;

require an appraisal district to appraise property in accordance with standards,
procedures, and methodology prescribed by appraisal manuals prepared and issued by the
comptroller;

provide that, in order to be eligible to serve on the board of directors of an appraisal
district, an individual must be an elected county officer or an elected official of a political
subdivision all or part of the territory of which is located in the county;

authorize an appraisal district board of directors for a district established in a county with
a population of 120,000 or more to increase the size of the district’s appraisal review
board by resolution to a number of members the board considers appropriate;

require the appraisal review boards located in counties with populations of 120,000 or
more to establish special appraisal review board panels for each of the following
classifications of property: (a) commercial real and personal property; (b) real and
personal property of utilities; (c) industrial and manufacturing real and personal property;
and (d) multifamily residential real property;

provide that a person is entitled to a property tax exemption for the tangible personal
property the person owns that is held or used for the production of income if the property
has a taxable value of less than $2,500;

make numerous calendar changes to the property tax appraisal, collection, and rate-
setting process in order to have property tax ratification elections on the November
uniform election date, including among others:

a. requiring the appraisal district to certify the appraisal roll to taxing units by July
10" (instead of July 25" under current law);

b. requiring the tax assessor/collector to submit the appraisal roll showing the total
appraised, assessed, and taxable values of all property and the total taxable value
of new property to the governing body of the taxing unit by July 15™, or as soon

~ thereafter as practicable (instead of August 1* under current law); and

F. requiring taxing units adopting a tax rate exceeding the lowered rollback tax rate
to do so before August 15" (instead of September 30, under current law)]




?.7,037/

(NOTE: this would also require a city that adopts a tax rate exceeding the rollback
rate to adopt its budget before August 15", as state law provides that property
taxes may only be levied in accordance with the city budget);

8. lower the property tax rollback rate from eight percent to four percent, with an exception
for a taxing unit located in an area declared a disaster aréa Gy e goverhor or president of
the United States during the current tax year;

9. requirg a taxing unit to hold a ratification election on the November uniform election date
of the applicable year in order to adopt a tax ratc (hat exceeds the four-percent rollback
rate (as opposed to current law, which only requires an election ff @ petition 1s received
from the ¢iti :

[0. provide that the meeting to adopt a tax rate that exceeds the lower of the rollback tax rate
or the effective tax rate may not be earlier than the third day or later than the seventh day
after the date of the second public hearing on the tax rate;

11. eliminate the ability of a taxing unit to challenge before the appraisal review board the
level of appraisals of any category of property in the appraisal district or in any territory
in the appraisal district;

12. require an appraisal review board to provide for hearings on protests on a Saturday or
after 5 p.m. on a weekday;

13. provide that an appraisal review board may not schedule: (a) the first hearing on a protest
held on a weekday to begin after 7 p.m.; or (b) a hearing on a protest on a Sunday;

14. provide that a property owner is entitled to appeal through binding arbitration an
appraisal review board order related to certain protests if the appraised market value of
the property as determined by the order is $5 million or less; and

15. amend current law related to the property tax rate notices provided by cities and counties
to require cities and counties to use one notice if the proposed tax rate will not exceed the
rollback tax rate, and another notice if the proposed tax rate will exceed the rollback tax
rate. (Note: under current law, the city or county uses one of the two notices based on
whether the proposed rate will exceed the lower of the effective tax rate or the rollback
tax rate.)




382017 The City of Montgomery Mait - S.B, 2 (Revenue Cap bill) Talking Peints

Yates, Jack <jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us>

berdoaedt ¥

S.B. 2 (Revenue Cap bill) Talking Points

1 message

Texas Municipal League <tmladmin@tml.org> Tue, Mar 7, 2017 at 3:57 PM
Reply-To: tmladmin@tml.org

To: jyates@ci.montgomery.tx.us

MUNICIPAL LEAGUE

The Senate Finance Committee will hear Senate Bill 2 by Senator Paul Bettencowrt on Tuesday,
March 14, at 9:00 a.m. in room E1.036 at the Texas State Capitol Building, S.B. 2 would impose a
4 percent property tax revenue cap on all city budgets.

Click here to read the bill and TML's summary here.

The League has prepared talking points against S.B. 2, below. Testifying IN PERSON is essential
to defeating S.B. 2. Please also call your senator to voice your opposition, A list of senators, with

Capitol office telephone numbers, is available here: hitp://www.senate.texas.gov/directory.php.

Recommendations for testifying against S.B, 2

City officials will get two minutes to make their case against revenue caps. The goal of all our
communications - testimony, media interviews, and meetings with legislators - is to convince
legislators that the negative consequences of S.B. 2 far outweigh its negligible benefits,

Our message

All our testimony should focus on the negative consequences of revenue caps on our citizens
without producing any tax relief. A revenue cap will seriously damage public safety, economic
development, and transportation. And, property taxes will continue fo rise because school district
taxes - the real cause of high property taxes in Texas - will continue to escalate, The bottom line of
our message is that legislators will get no credit for reducing taxes and will receive all the blame
for everything that cities can't afford to do.

Points to make

* 8,B. 2is an assault on public safety, Tell them what percentage of your city budget goes to
police, fire, and EMS. Legislators can't proclaim that they support law enforcement officers
if they vote to restrict the source of funding that pays for salaries, equipment, vehicles,
technology, health insurance and pensions of the men and women who protect our citizens.
A vote for S.B. 2 is a vote against law enforcement.

Give specific examples of improvements the city wants to make in public safety services
that would be threatened by revenue caps. additional personnel, better salaries, body

https://mait.google.com/mail/?ui=2&ik=c96585b6a3&view= pt&search=inbox&th=15aaacBdc45af6dadsiml = 15aaachdcd5aitda 13




3/8/2017 The City of Montgomery Mail - 8.B. 2 {Revenue Cap hill) Talking Points

cameras, protective vesis, more training, fixing pension problems. S.B. 2 would slam the
door on the progress you want to make to protect the citizens of your city,

+ S.B. 2 will damage economic growth. Cities are on the front line of the competition to
attract and keep job-creating businesses. Cities provide the tax abatements and other
incentives that bring in new businesses and the services and infrastructure that businesses
and their employees need. Revenue caps will reduce the ability of cities to offer the tax
abatements and infrastructure improvements that have been crucial to closing the deal in
many corporate relocation decisions that create jobs for our citizens.

Give specific examples of job creating deals your city might not have been able to afford
under a revenue cap. Even better, give an example of a project that is under consideration
now that might be put on hold because of the uncertainty created by S.B. 2.

« S.B. 2 threatens highway construction. Over the past two decades, the state has demanded
ever increasing financial contributions from local governments for state highway
construction projects. Revenue caps will force cities to focus their restricted funding on
local street improvements and cuttail discretionary spending on state projects.

Give specific examples of projects currently under consideration that could be put on hold
because of the budget constraints that S.B. 2 would impose on your city,

Responding to questions

There are a few things we can predict from supporters that you should be prepared for.

« Misleading statistics., Supporters will recite the increase in city "tax levies" over a certain
period of time. Response: That is the increase in total tax collections that reflect economic
growth, population growth, and new construction. It is a measure of our success in growing
our economy. That does not reflect the taxes on an individual home or business. It is
misleading for them to portray it that way.

« It's not a cap, Supporters will say it's not a cap because you can exceed it with an
election. Response: They can call it whatever they want but we call it a cap, just like the
spending limit in the Constitution that senators call a spending cap that can be exceeded by a
simple majority vote in both houses. S.B. 2 would be an additional state-imposed restriction
on our ability to provide services to our citizens.

* We're not here to talk about school district taxes. Supporters may try to stifle any
mention of school property taxes. Response: We know some in the legislature don't want to
address the real cause of high property taxes and they don't even want anyone to tafk about
it. OR We know they don't want anyone to say 'the emperor has no clothes,' but we should
be honest with the people of Texas about the real cause of high property taxes.

» When in doubt, return to one of your major talking points.
What to avoid

« Don't spend time talking about the principle of local control, For anyone in the legislature
that stills believes in the idea of local control, we already have their vote,

» Don't spend time reciting what the bill does. Everyone can read the bill on their own time.

» You don't have to be defensive about your local tax rates. City taxes are not the cause of
high property taxes in Texas. The legislature's failure to fund public education is the
problem.

» The cost of holding a rollback election is a budgeting concern for cities but not the strongest
argument against the bill.

htips://mail google.com/mail/?ui=24ik=c96585bBa3sview= ptésearch=inbox &th= t5aaactde45afSdadsiml= 15aaac6dcdbaltda 23




3/8/2017 The City of Monigomery Mail - $.B. 2 (Revenue Cap bill) Tatking Points

« Supporters say S.B. 2 reduces the rollback'rate to 4 percent. We say S.B. 2 imposes a state
cap on the revenue and budget of every city in Texas.

Please contact Shanna Igo at sigo@tml.org or 512-750-8718 for any questions.

Texas Municipal League, 1821 Rutherford Lane, Suite 400, Austin, TX 78754

SafeUnsubscribe ™ jyates@ci.montgomery.tx,us
About our service provider

Sent by imladmin@tmi.org

hitps:/fmail.google.com/mail/?ui=28ik=c9656506a38view=pi&sear ch=inbox&th=15aaac6dcd Salbdadsim| = 15aaacdca5aeda 313




2016 Effective Tax Rate Worksheet
City of Montgomery

Date: 07/28/2016 09:44 AM

1. 2015 total taxable value. Enter the amount of 2015 taxable value on the 2015 tax roll
today. Include any adjustments since last year's certification; exclude Tax Code Section

25.25(d) one-third over-appraisal corrections from these adjustments. This total includes the $125,508,624
taxable value of homesteads with tax ceilings (will deduct in Line 2) and the captured value

for tax increment financing (will deduct taxes in Line 14).1

2. 2015 tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior college districts. Enter 2015 total taxable
value of homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of homeowners age 65 $
or older or disabled. Other taxing units enter 0. If your taxing units adopted the tax ceiling 0

provision in 2015 or a prior year for homeowners age 65 or older or disabled, use this step.?

3. Preliminary 2015 adjusted taxable value. Subtract I.ine 2 from Line 1. $125,508,624

4. 2015 total adopted tax rate, $0.4155/$100

5. 2015 taxable value lost because court appeals of ARB decisions reduced 2015
appraised value.

A. Original 2015 ARB Values. : $0
B. 2015 values resulting from final court decisions. $0
C. 2015 value loss. Subtract B from A.° $0
6. 2015 taxable value, adjusted for court-ordered reductions. Add Line 3 and Line 5C. $125,508,624
7. 2015 taxable value of property in territory the taxing unit deannexed after Jan. 1, $0

2015. Enter the 2015 value of property in deaunexed territory.*

8. 2015 taxable value lost because property first qualified for an exemption in 2016.
Note that lowering the amount or percentage of an existing exemption does not create a new
exemption or reduce taxable value. If the taxing unit increased an original exemption, use
the difference between the original exempted amount and the increased exempted amouut.
Do not include value lost to freeport or goods-in-transit exemptions.

A. Absolute exemptions. Use 2015 market value: $0
B. Partial exemptions. 2016 exemption amount or 2016 percentage exemption times 2015 $48,000
value:

C. Value loss. Add A and B.° $48,000

9. 2015 taxable value lost because property first qualified for agricultural appraisal (1-
d or 1-d-1), timber appraisal, recreational/scenic appraisal or public access airport
special appraisal in 2016. Use only properties that qualified in 2016 for the first time; do
not use properties that qualified in 2015.

A. 2015 market value: $0

B. 2016 productivity or special appraised value: $0




C. Valﬁe loss. Subtract B from A.°

$0

10. Total adjustments for lost value. Add lines 7, 8C and 9C.

$48,000

11. 2015 adjusted taxable value. Subtract Line 10 from Line 6.

$125,460,624

12. Adjusted 2015 taxes. Multiply Line 4 by Line 11 and divide by $100.

$521,288

13. Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2015. Enter the amount of tazes refunded
by the taxing unit for tax years preceding tax year 2015. Types of refunds include court
decisions, Tax Code Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and Tax Code Section 31.11
payment errors. Do not include refunds for tax year 2015. This line applies only to tax years

preceding tax year 2015.7

$921

14, Taxes in tax increment financing (TTF) for tax year 2015. Enter the amount of taxes
paid into the tax increment fund for a reinvestment zone as agreed by the taxing unit. If the

taxing unit has no 2016 captured appraised value in Line 16D, enter 0.8

$0

15. Adjusted 2015 taxes with refunds and TIF adjustment. Add Lines 12 and 13, subtract
Line 14.%

$522,209

16. Total 2016 taxable value on the 2016 certified appraisal roll today. This value
includes only certified values and includes the total taxable value of homesteads with tax
ceilings (will deduct in Line 18). These homesteads include homeowners age 65 or older or

disabled.1®
A. Certified values:
B. Counties: Include railroad rolling stock values certified by the Comnptroller's office:

C. Pollution control exemption: Deduct the value of property exeinpted for the current tax
year for the first time as pollution control property:

D. Tax increment financing: Deduct the 2016 captured appraised value of property taxable
by a taxing unit in a tax increment financing zone for which the 2016 taxes will be deposited
into the tax increment fund. Do not include any new property value that will be included in

Line 21 below.!!

E. Total 2016 value. Add A and B, then subtract C and D.

$168,025,637

$0

$0

$0

$168,025,637

17. Total value of properties under protest or not included on certified appraisal roll,1?

A. 2016 taxable value of properties under protest. The chief appraiser certifies a list of
properties still under ARB protest. The list shows the appraisal district's value and the
taxpayer's claimed value, if any, or an estimate of the value if the taxpayer wins. For each of

the properties under protest, use the lowest of these values. Enter the total value.

B. 2016 value of properties not under protest or included on certified appraisal roll.
The chief appraiser gives taxing units a list of those taxable properties that the chief
appraiser knows about, but are not included in the appraisal roll certification. These
properties also are not on the list of properties that are still under protest. On this Hst of
properties, the chief appraiser includes the market value, appraised value and exemptions for
the preceding year and a reasonable estimate of the market value, appraised value and
exemptions for the cnrrent year. Use the lower market, appraised or taxable value (as

appropriate). Enter the total value 1

$1,748,550

$0




CT Total value under protest or not certified: Add A and B. $1,748.550

18. 2016 tax ceilings. Counties, cities and junior colleges enter 2016 total taxable value of
homesteads with tax ceilings. These include the homesteads of homeowners age 65 or older $0
or disabled, Other taxing units enter 0. If your taxing units adopted the tax ceiling provision

in 2015 or a prior year for homeowners age 65 or older or disabled, use this step. >

19. 2016 total taxable value. Add Lines 16E and 17C. Subtract Line 18, $169,774,187
20. Total 2016 taxable value of properties in territory annexed after Jan. 1, 2015.

Include both real and personal property. Enter the 2016 value of property in territory $293,100
annexed.16

21. Total 2016 taxable value of new improvements and new personal property located
in new improvemeuts. New means the itern was not on the appraisal roll in 2015. An
improvement is a building, structure, fixture or fence erected on or affixed to land, New
additions to existing improvements may be included if the appraised value can be $17,787,799
determined. New personal property in a new improvement must have been brought into the
taxing unit after Jan. 1, 2015, and be located in a new improvement. New improvements do

include property on which a tax abatement agreement has expired for 20 16.17

22, Total adjustmeuts to the 2016 taxable value. Add Lines 20 and 21. $18,080,899
23. 2016 adjusted taxable value. Subtract Line 22 from Line 19. $151,693,288
24. 2016 effective tax rate. Divide Line 15 by Line 23 and mnltiply by $100.18 $0.3442/$100

25. COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the effective tax rates for each type of tax the county
levies. The total is the 2016 county effective tax rate. 1%
A county, city or hospital district that adopted the additional sales tax in November 2015 or in May 2016 must adjust its

effective tax rate. The Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet sets out this adjustment. Do not forget to complete the
Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet if the taxing unit adopted the additional sales tax on these dates.

Tex, Tax Code Section 26.012(14)

*Tex. Tax Code Section 26.012(14)

3Tex. Tax Code Sectian 26,012(13)

#Tex. Tax Code Sectian 26.012(15)

5Tex. Tax Code Section 26.012(15)

6Tex. Tax Code Section 26.012(15)

"Tex, Tax Code Section 26.012(13)

8Tax. Tax Code Section 26.03(c)

9Tex. Tax Code Section 26.012(13)

10Tay, Tax Code Section 26.012(15)
UTey. Tax Code Section 26.03(c)

L2Tex, Tax Code Section 26.01(c)

13Teax, Tax Code Section 26.04 and 26.041
14Tax, Tax Code Section 26.04 and 26.041
15Tex, Tax Code Section 26.012(6)

18Tex. Tax Code Section 26.012(17)
17Tex, Tax Code Section 26.012(17)
18Tex, Tax Code Section 26.04(c)

3Tex. Tax Code Section 26.04(d)




2016 Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet

City of Montgomery
Date: 07/28/2016
26. 2015 maintenance and operations (M&QO) tax rate. $0.2043/$100
27. 2015 adjusted taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 11. $125,460,624
28. 2015 M&O taxes.
A. Multiply Line 26 by Line 27 and divide by $100. $256,316

B. Cities, counties and hospital districts with additional sales tax: Amount of additional
sales tax collected and spent on M&O expenses in 2015. Enter amount from full year's sales $591,618
tax revenue spent for M&Q in 2015 fiscal year, if any. Other taxing units enter 0. Counties
exclude any amount that was spent for economic development grants from the amount of |

sales tax spent. |

C. Counties: Fnter the amount for the state criminal justice mandate. If second or later year,
the amount is for increased cost ahove last year's amount. Other taxing units enter 0. 50

D. Transferring function: If discontinuing all of a department, function or activity and
transferring it to another taxing unit by written contract, enter the amount spent by the taxing
unit discontinuing the function in the 12 months preceding the month of this calculation. If
the taxing unit did not operate this function for this 12-month period, use the amount spent $0
in the last full fiscal year in which the taxing wiit operated the function. The taxing unit
discontinuing the function will subtract this amount in H below. The taxing unit receiving
the function will add this amount in H below. Other taxing units enter 0.

E. Taxes refunded for years preceding tax year 2015: Enter the amount of M&O taxes
refunded in the preceding year for taxes hbefore that year. Types of refunds include court $336
decisions, Tax Code Section 25.25(b) and (c) corrections and Tax Code Section 31.11
payment errors. Do not include refunds for tax year 2015. This line applies only to tax years
preceding tax year 2015.

F. Enhanced indigent health care expenditures: Enter the imcreased amount for the
current year's enhanced indigent health care expenditures above the preceding tax year's 50
enhanced indigent health care expenditures, less any state assistance.

G. Taxes in TIF: Enter the amount of taxes paid into the tax increment fund for a
reinvestment zone as agreed by the taxing unit. If the taxing unit has no 2016 captured $0

appraised valne in Line 161, enter 0.

H. Adjusted M&O Taxes. Add A, B, C, E and F. For unit with D, subtract if discontinuing

function and add if receiving function. Subtract G. $848,270
29. 2016 adjusted taxable value. Enter Line 23 from the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet, $151,693,288
30. 2'016 effective maintenance and operations rate. Divide Line 28H by Line 29 and $0.5592/4100
multiply by $100.

31. 2016 rollback maintenance and operation rate, Multiply Line 30 by 1.08. $0.6039/$100




32. Total 2016 debt to be paid with property taxes and additional sales tax revenue.
"Debt" means the interest and principal that will be paid on debts that:
(1) are paid by property taxes,
(2) are secured by property taxes,
(3) are scheduled for payment over a period longer than one year and
(4) are not classified in the taxing unit's budget as M&O expenses.

i s . . $514,367
A. Debt also includes contractual payments to other taxing units that have incurred debts on
behalf of this taxing unit, if those debts meet the four conditions above. Include only
amounts that will be paid from property tax revenue. Do not include appraisal district budget
payments. List the debt in Schedule B: Debt Service.
B. Subtract unencumbered fund amount used to reduce total debt. 50
C. Subtract amount paid from other resources.
D. Adjusted debt. Subtract B and C from A. $0

$514,367

33. Certified 2015 excess debt collections. Enter the amount certified by the collector. $0
34. Adjusted 2016 debt. Subtract Line 33 from Line 32D. $514,367
35. Certified 2016 anticipated collection rate. Enter the rate certified by the collector. if 100.00%
the rate is 100 percent or greater, enter 100 percent. Rl
36. 2016 debt adjusted for collections. Divide Line 34 by Line 35 $514,367
37. 2016 total taxable value. Enter the amount on Line 18, $169,774,187
38. 2016 debt tax rate. Divide Line 36 by Line 37 and multiply by $100. $0.3029/$100
39. 2016 rollback tax rate. Add Lines 31 and 38. $0.9068/$100
40. COUNTIES ONLY. Add together the rollback tax rates for each type of tax the county
levies, The total is the 2016 county rollback tax rate.

A taxing unit that adopted the additional sales tax must complete the lines for the Additional Sales Tax Rate. A taxing
unit seeking additional rollback protection for pollution control expenses completes the Additional Rollback Protection

for Pollution Control.




2016 Additional Sales Tax Rate Worksheet
City of Montgomery

Date: 07/28/2016

41, Taxable Sales. For taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November 2015 or May

2016, enter the Comptroller's estimate of taxable sales for the previous four quarters.’
Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before November 2015, skip this line.

$0

42. Estimated sales tax revenue. Counties exclude any amount that is or will be spent for

economic development grants from the amount of estimated sales tax revenue,?
Taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November 2015 or in May 2016.
Multiply the amount on Line 41 by the sales tax rate ( 01, .005 or .0025, as applicable} and

multiply the result by .95.%
- Qr -

Taxing units that adopted the sales tax before November 2015.
Enter the sales tax revenue for the previous four quarters. Do not multiply by .95.

$591,618

43. 2016 total taxable value. Enter the amount from Line 37 of the Rollback Tax Rate
‘Waorksheet.

$169,774,187

44. Sales tax adjustment rate, Divide Line 42 by Line 43 and multiply by $100.

$0.3485/$100

45, 2016 effective tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax. Enter the rate from Line 24 or 25, as

applicable, ou the Effective Tax Rate Worksheet. $0.3442/3100
46. 2016 effective tax rate, adjusted for sales tax.*

Taxing units that adopted the sales tax in November 2015 or in May 2016. $0.3442/$100
Subtract Line 44 from Line 45, Skip to Line 47 if you adopted the additional sales tax before )
November 2015.

47. 2016 rollback tax rate, unadjusted for sales tax.” Enter the rate from Line 39 or 40, as $0.9068/$100
applicable, of the Rollback Tax Rate Worksheet. ’

48, 2016 rollback tax rate, adjusted for sales tax. Subtract Line 44 from Line 47. $0.5583/$100

ITex. Tax Code Section 26.041(c)
2Tex. Tax Code Section 26.041(1)
3Tex. Tax Code Section 26.041(d)
#Tex. Tax Code Section 26.04(c}
STex. Tax Code Section 26.04(c)




Tht RATE D EFwTron

The roliback tax rate calculation splits the tax rate into two separate
components - a maintenance and operations (M&Q) rate and a debt
service rate. M&O includes such things as salaries, utilities and day-to-day
operations. Debt service covers the interest and principal on bonds and
other debt secured by property tax revenues. ' The rollback tax rate is the
sum of M&O and debt service rates. ? In most cases, the rollback tax rate
exceeds the effective tax rate, but occasionally decreases in a taxing unit's
debt service will cause the effective tax rate to be higher than the rollback
tax rate.

The effective tax rate enables the public to evaluate the relationship
between taxes for the prior year and for the current year, based on a tax
rate that would produce the same amount of taxes if applied to the same
properties taxed in both years.

111




Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #9
Budgeted Amount:
Meeting Date: March 14, 2017
Department:
Exhibits: Proposed Landscape
Prepared By: Jack Yates Ordinance

City Administrator
Date Prepared: March 9, 2017

Discuss/possible action regarding landscape ordinance that requires a percentage
| of each developed business and new subdivisions to be landscaped.

The Landscape Ordinance was reviewed and recommended for approval to the
City Council by the Planning Commission

The ordinance in Section 78-185 defines “Landscaped Area” as a combination of
living plants such as grass, groundcover, shrubs, vines, hedges and trees and
other nonliving landscape materials such as rocks, Pebbles, sand, mulch, walls,
fences or other decorative paving materials. The article applies to all newly-
platted residential lots and any parcel over 5 acres. The ordinance Section 78-188
a. Requires a landscape plan approval, submitted at the same time as the
construction plans are provided in advance of the Final Plat.

Section 78-187 gives the rules/basis for a variance from the ordinance.

In the ordinance, Section 78-188 €.2., it is proposed that residential property be
covered with 12% landscaping.

The ordinance, Section 78-188 e.1., proposes that nonresidential property be
covered with 10% landscaping.

The ordinance, Section 78-188 {., proposes that parking lot areas have 20%
landscaping inside the parking area,



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #9


Montgomery City Council
AGENDA REPORT

The ordinance, Section 78-188 n., Allows the City Administrator to approve very
minor changes that do not decrease the amount or quality of landscaping from
what was approved and the final plat review.

Reccomendation
Consider the ordinance as proposed-make any comments-- take action to adopt
or to revise the ordinance.

Approved By
City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 9, 2017




ORDINANCE

AN ORDINANCE REGARDING LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS FOR
ALL ZONING DISTRICTS IN THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS;
PROVIDING DEFINITIONS, PURPOSE, APPLICABILITY, VARIANCES,
AND LANDSCAPE PLAN APPROVAL; PROVIDING SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE AND TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING
AN EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PUBLICATION.

WHEREAS, the City Council for the City of Montgomery County, Texas, desires to provide
reasonable landscaping regulations which will enhance the beauty of the City, safeguard property
values, and enhance the public health, safety and general welfare of the City and is residents;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF
MONTGOMERY, TEXAS THAT:

SECTION I. AMENDMENTS TO CITY CODE
The City Code of Ordinances is hereby amended to add Article VI, “Landscaping Requirements
For All Zoning Districts,” to Chapter 78, “SUBDIVISIONS,” to read as follows:
ARTICLE VIII - LANDSCAPING REQUIREMENTS FOR ALL ZONING DISTRICTS
Sec. 78-185 — Definitions.

The following words, terms and phrases, when used in this article, shall have the meaning
ascribed to them in this section, except where the context clearly indicates a different meaning:

Berm means an earthen mound designed to provide visual interest, screen undesirable
views and/or decrease noise.

Landscape buffer means a combination of physical space and vertical elements, such as
plants, berms, 2-sided fences or walls with at least five feet (5°) of plantings on the side of the
development and adjacent to the fence or wall, the purpose of which is to separate and screen
incompatible land uses from each other.



Landscaped open area and landscaped area mean any combination of living plants, such
as grass, ground cover, shrubs, vines hedges or trees, and nonliving landscape material, such as
rocks, pebbles, sand, mulch, walls, fences or decorative paving materials.

Non-permeable means any surface lacking the ability for air and water to pass through to
the root zone of plants.

Ornamental tree means a deciduous or evergreen tree planted primarily for its ornamental
value or screening purposes. Such tree tends to be smaller at maturity than a shade tree.

Screen means a method of reducing the impact of noise and unsightly visual intrusions
with less offense or more harmonious elements, such as plants, berms, 2-sided fences or walls with
at least five feet (5°) of plantings on the side of the development and adjacent to the fence or wall,
any appropriate combination thereof.

Shade tree means a sometimes evergreen, usually deciduous tree, planted for its high
crown of foliage or overhead canopy; a large woody perennial having one or more self-supporting
stems and numerous branches reaching a mature height of at least 25 feet and a mature spread of
at least 20 feet.

Shrub means a self-supporting wood perennial plant of low to medium height which is
characterized by multiple stems and branches continuous from the base, usually not more than ten
feet in height at maturity.

Visibility triangle means an imaginary triangle located within the curblines of two
intersecting such curblines at points 35ft. back from their intersection and the hypotenuse (or third
side of the triangle).

Sec. 78 — 186 - Purpose.
The purpose of this article is to:

1. Aidin stabilizing the environment’s ecological balance by contributing to the processes

of air purification, oxygen regeneration, groundwater recharge and storm water runoff
retardation, while at the same time aiding in noise, glare and heat abatement.

2. Assist in providing adequate light and air and preventing overcrowding of land.

3. Ensure that landscaping is an integral part of development, not an afterthought.
4. Provide visual buffering and enhance the beautification of the City.



5. Safeguard and enhance property values and protect public and private investments.

6. Preserve and protect the unique identity and environment of the City and preserve the
economic base attracted to the City by such factors.

7. Conserve energy.
8. Protect the public health, safety and general welfare.
Sec. 78-187 — Applicability; variances.

a. This article applies to all lots, parcels, or tracts of land within the City as well as any areas
subsequently annexed by the City with the following exceptions:

1. Previously platted residential lots.
2. Any platted parcel, less than 5 acres, that contains an occupied building which has a
valid certificate of occupancy.

b.  When this article becomes applicable to a lot, the requirements set forth in this article shall
be binding on all current and subsequent owners of the lot.

C. The Planning and Zoning Commission shall, as a minimum, impose landscaping
requirements that are reasonably consistent with the standards and purposes of this article as a part
of any ordinance establishing or amending a planned development district, amending a special use
permit. All landscaping requirements imposed by the Planning and Zoning Commission and shall
be reflected in landscape and irrigation plans that comply in form and content with the
requirements of Section 78-188.

d. The Board of Adjustment may grant a special exception to the landscaping requirements
set forth in this article upon making a special finding from the evidence presented that strict
compliance with the requirement of this article will result in inequity to the applicant without
sufficient corresponding benefit to the City and its citizens in accomplishing the objectives and
purposes of this article. The applicant to be considered for special exception must submit a
justification statement that describes which of the requirements set forth in this article will be met
with modifications; which project conditions justify using alternative; and how the proposed
measures equal or exceed normal compliance.



Sec. 78-188 — Landscape plan approval

a. At the time of site plan review, there shall be submitted to the City Administrator or the
City Administrator’s designee, a landscape plan drawn to the same scale as the approved site plan
and submitted with the same number of copies as the site plan. The Planning Commission may
adopt a thematic Landscape Plan for certain areas of the City that dictate private plans.

b. Except where otherwise provided, the person responsible for the property, whether owner
or tenant, shall landscape all yard, setback, parking, service and recreational areas with lawns,
trees, shrubs, flowers, vines, ground covers or other live plant materials, which shall be
permanently maintained by the owner or tenant in a neat and orderly manner as a condition of
certificate of occupancy. Once installed, all landscape materials shall be irrigated by a mechanical
underground irrigation system and maintained in a living state. Dead or dying plant materials shall
be removed and replaced in accordance with the approved landscape plan.

C. Where the use of a living screen is proposed, such screen must be included as an element
of the site plan and landscape plan.

d. Fountains, ponds, sculptures, planters, walkways, flagpoles, light standards and decorative
screen-type walls shall be permitted as elements of landscaping in areas designated for
landscaping. Decorative-type walls, planters and sculptures shall be 30 inches or less in height.
The City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee shall be authorized to permit heights
more than 30 inches where it would be in the best interest of the landscaping and will not, in the
opinion of the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee, create a problem relative
to public health, safety, convenience, prosperity and general welfare.

e. Areas of landscaped open space shall be provided on the same lot, parcel or tract as the
building that is being served and shall be provided in the following ratios:

1. Nonresidential. New nonresidential development in all districts shall be subject
to all provisions of this article, provided that a one-time expansion of the floor area of buildings
on a lot or building tract not exceeding 15 percent of the existing floor area shall not be subject to
the requirements of this article. For lots, parcels or tracts of land applicable of this section
landscaping shall be provided at a minimum ratio of ten percent (10%) of the gross land area,
excluding development on lots of record.

2. Residential subdivisions and multifamily. Excluding single-family detached,
single-family attached, duplex dwellings or multi-family dwellings on lots of record, new
residential, duplex and multi-family development, including new residential subdivisions, shall be



subject to the provisions of this subsection; landscaping shall be provided at a minimum of twelve
percent (12%) of the gross land area.

f. For parking areas, a minimum of 20 percent (20%) of the required landscaping shall be
provided in areas that are internal to the parking areas. In parking lots having only one row of
parking, such requirement may be met with perimeter landscaping.

g. Proposed utilities shall be located, when possible, so that their installation will not
adversely affect vegetation to be retained on site.

h. For purposes of establishing compliance with the minimum area requirements for
landscaping, no land within the 100-year floodway, as determined by the most recent Federal
Emergency Management Agency (FEMA) study, shall be counted as fulfilling the minimum
landscape area requirements.

I. The landscape plan shall show in detail, but shall not be limited to, the location of each
element of landscaping; a description by botanical and common name of each landscape element
or group of element; the number and size of each tree or planting container; and the height of any
proposed planter, sculpture or decorative screen.

J. The City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee, with the aid of appropriate
City staff, shall consider the adequacy of the proposed landscaping and any other aspect deemed
necessary to promote the public health, safety, order, convenience, prosperity and general welfare.

k. In the approval or disapproval of the landscape plan, the City Administrator or the City
Administrator’s designee shall not be authorized to waive or vary conditions and requirement
contained in the comprehensive zoning ordinance, Chapter 98 of this Code, or other valid city
ordinances.

l. It shall be unlawful to issue a certificate of occupancy prior to the approval of the
landscape plan by the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee. Prior to the
issuance of a certificate of occupancy but after the screening and landscaping has been approved,
a temporary certificate of occupancy may be issued for such limited time as is reasonable to
complete the landscaping.

m.  When changes to a previously approved landscape plan are requested, and such changes
will result in amendment or abandonment of an easement or right-of-way, or when the gross square
footage of a lot, parcel or tract of land will be increased by more than ten percent (10%) or 1,000
square feet, whichever is less, or if the approval of a revised site plan is required, the Planning and
Zoning Commission’s designee shall consider the same elements in the approval or disapproval of
a revised landscape plan as for an original landscape plan. In considering a revised landscape plan



the Planning and Zoning Commission shall not be authorized to waive or vary conditions and
requirements contained in the comprehensive zoning ordinance, Chapter 98 of this Code, or
amendments thereto, or other valid city ordinances. If the changes being proposed are of a minor
nature, as determined by the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee,
administrative approval of the minor revisions shall be permitted under the conditions set forth in
the following subsection.

n.  The City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee shall be authorized to approve
minor amendments to previously approved landscape plans. Minor amendments are those
amendments which provide for rearrangement or reconfiguration of landscape areas or materials
which are in conformance with an approved site plan and do not decrease the amount or quality of
landscaping below that required by the comprehensive zoning ordinance, Chapter 98 of this Code.
In the approval or disapproval of a minor revision to an approved landscape plan or revised
landscape plan, the City Administrator or the City Administrator’s designee shall not be authorized
to waive or vary conditions and requirements contained in the comprehensive zoning ordinance,
or amendments thereto, or other valid city ordinances. All minor revisions that are approved
administratively shall appear as an item on the next Planning and Zoning Commissions agenda
following approval for acknowledgment of staff action.

SECTION Il. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE.

If any provision, section, subsection, sentence, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase
of this Ordinance or the application of same to any person or set of circumstances,
shall for any reason be held to be unconstitutional, void, or invalid or otherwise
unenforceable, the invalidity or unenforceability shall not affect other provisions of
this Ordinance or their application to other sets of circumstances and to this end all
provisions of this Ordinance are declared to be severable.

SECTION I1l. TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT.

It is hereby officially found and determined that the meeting at which this Ordinance was
considered was open to the public as required and that public notice of the time, place and purpose
of said meeting was given as required by the Open Meetings Act, Chapter 155, of the Texas
Government Code.

SECTION IV. EFFECTIVE DATE.



This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force immediately after its publication as provided by
law.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the City Council of the City of Montgomery, Texas, on
the day of March, 2017.

THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry L. Foerster, City Attorney



Montgomery City Council

AGENDA REPORT
ITEM #10
Budgeted Amount;
Meeting Date: March 14, 2017
Department:
Exhibits: Annexation Ordinance,
Prepared By: Jack Yates Service Plan

City Administrator
Date Prepared: March 9, 2017

This is the final action to annex the 14.5003 acres of land to the city.

W

The Annexation Ordinance and Service Plan is attached.
At the two public hearings there was no public comment.

Recomendation
To adopt the Annexation Ordinance for the 14.5003 parcel as presented.

P

Approved By

City Administrator | Jack Yates Date: March 9, 2017



shensley
Typewritten Text
ITEM #10


shensley
Typewritten Text

shensley
Typewritten Text

shensley
Typewritten Text

shensley
Typewritten Text


Motion made by and seconded by approving
the following Ordinance:

ORDINANCE NO. 2017-

AN ORDINANCE ANNEXING THE HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED
TERRITORY OF 14.5003 ACRES OF LAND, MORE OR LESS, IN THE JOHN H.
CORNER SURVEY, ABSTRACT 8, TO THE CITY OF MONTGOMERY,
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, TEXAS, AND EXTENDING THE BOUNDARY
LIMITS OF SAID CITY SO AS TO INCLUDE SAID HEREINAFTER DESCRIBED
PROPERTY WITHIN SAID CITY LIMITS, AND GRANTING TO ALL THE
INHABITANTS OF SAID PROPERTY ALL THE RIGHTS AND PRIVILEGES OF
OTHER CITIZENS AND BINDING SAID INHABITANTS BY ALL OF THE ACTS,
ORDINANCES, RESOLUTIONS, AND REGULATIONS OF SAID CITY;
ADOPTING AN ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN FOR SAID ANNEXATION;
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE AND A TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT
CLAUSE; AND PROVDING THE EFFECTIVE DATE UPON PASSAGE OF THE
ORDINANCE

WHEREAS, Section 43.028 of the Texas Local Government Code authorizes the
annexation by the City of Montgomery of a sparsely occupied area which has been petitioned
by the owners of the annexation, subject to the laws of this State; and

WHEREAS, the Montgomery City Council has granted a petition for annexation of
a tract of land of approximately 14.5003 acres on the north side of State Highway 105,
contiguous to the Montgomery city limits, by Resolution No. 2017- 05, dated January 24,
2017; and

WHEREAS, the City Council has conducted two public hearings on February 14
and February 28, 2017 to receive the comments of its citizens on the proposed annexation,
and there have been no objections to the proposed annexation; and

WHEREAS, the annexation procedures prescribed by the Texas Local Government
Code and the laws of this State have been duly followed with respect to the following
described territory, to wit;

Being a 14.5003-acre tract of land in the JOHN. H, CORNER SURVEY, Abstract
8, of Montgomery County, Texas, further described in the legal description attached
hereto in Exhibit “A.”

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS:

1. PROPERTIES ANNEXED: That the heretofore described property in Exhibit
"A” is hereby annexed to the City of Montgomery, Montgomery County, Texas,
and that the boundary limits of the City of Montgomery, be and the same be
hereby extended to include the above described territory within the city limits of




the City of Montgomery and the same shall hereafter be included within the
territorial limits of said city, and the inhabitants thereof shall hereatter be entitled
to all the rights and privileges of other citizens of the City of Montgomery and
they shall be bound by the acts, ordinances, resolutions, and regulations of said
city.

2. ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN: An Annexation Service Plan for the area
is hereby adopted and attached as Exhibit “B”.

3. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: The provisions of this Ordinance are severable.
If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or circumstance
is held invalid, the invalidity does not affect other provisions or applications of
this Ordinance that can be given effect without the invalid provision or
application.

4. TEXAS OPEN MEETINGS ACT: It is hereby officially found and determined
that the meeting at which this Ordinance was considered was open to the public
as required and that public notice of the time, place, and purpose of said meeting
was given as required by the Texas Open Meetings Act, Chapter 551, of the
Texas Government Code,

5. FILING ORDINANCE: The City Secretary is hereby directed to file a certified
copy of this Ordinance with the County Clerk of Montgomery County, Texas,
the Montgomery County Central Appraisal District, the Texas Secretary of State,
and the Office of Texas State Comptroller.

6. EFFECTIVE DATE: This Ordinance shall be effective upon its passage.

PASSED AND APPROVED by an affirmative vote of the members of the City
Council, on this the day of March 2017,

Kirk Jones, Mayor

ATTEST:

Susan Hensley, City Secretary

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Larry L. Foerster, City Attorney




140 L A33MS

Suurmitn G YRS BT
Ocsa-cor{um)
0CLL KL DEOVKICON TE
SIS S TVGK SEGAYE 473
AHTVTIO0 LOGoRTL ¥

910Z H3AEW3D3A
SYXAL 'AINNDOD AUSWODLNOW
&Y "AIAGNS HEANHOD NHOM
IHL NI

SIHIY B6F FL AATIVI ¥ 40 Tiv HNIE

(1334 IYvNOS 269’ LEY)
S3YOY E005'+E 20

1I9IHX3 NOILVX3INNV
ALSWOBLINOW 30 Ao
¥ L19IHX3

ATE | MpIsi | o et | andieses [sn
STaE_| mpLitlon | enn 2w [ gy [m
cov | ML | a0 o | sdeviars | e
s | masnins | | MLSLIILN | )
orar | soronecs [0 wa [ damstecs [
ot | 2o [ | [ ssae [raewas [m
S ] dArars | EEET ]
wet | Jutiars o] [aeec [ 1atonmn [m
T | muanaet [T el
e | Letanes | @ ™
oM ] SIS |6 o
ww_j Juastacs [ ]
| T [ =01 "
aTWy { Jonilacs [ o
e § 3,0meacs [an W | d.0stmt08 | m
b | LG e are 1 30y [ wae | mosiataan |5
Y T e § mestecats (] | men | damiers | n
ot | adsseazs iem TrST ] LR | o | 1remas | a
war | iaanod jaal {Twiw {3dkweers |m01] [swem [ dscoee [m
T | maoticdes ] wr woae | datoeas [ | over [wocratain | B
PUSNTT| W3 1ONf |HAOmIY | Orinvda |on| [sow;| owas [ow
TECLINT nEYLINN TravLiND

veret | a.oecenn ] s | rrssiy | vt
ouoo | ous ana | warad | snicva | Wiowm | en
a1 AT

Aausbiney -

el
e

Fers
R

£OTHE = ATT

o SOt D SV
@ —< N mTHEIEE —
01 Ay 0 205 10T
3 1 “cvmiave Wi i 50 ymom 0 1T
ek 3 TR N WS S5V ADROn B AL

(PeuTe ZIOL/RY DOVMY DL SCTWATT 4 1How
B L ON N —

I Rinbaticn sy smen 29 3 43

Ut DAL
B 4 P AT 0 LA P O 4 ) e RN At
Ioran dacarms mwa A3 o1 'Rl K ESMISTY TR Lol L ARG ) QU 30 i 42 A P
B0 PR (3647w 01 GO 00 b OO [V T L BT LT MORANE PUCT e BRI 21 AL "W KBS S0 PPN B 4ot
st g a0y wesd 4 U poar

ar sunn uoEmE Mt 10 0
] amdzn "
ok

"AIAHNS JO AWLL LY SLERM ALD
AHINOOLINOM 40 ALK IHL NiWUM 39
QL SHVAddVY SJHIV 059 OFTWD 40 TIV

LY, IION

Vanom
STRERLHG 1 152
10 AN

SN L4 GITIVD 40 WIGNOYAZS

Pl DS 29T
EM Y

= om = wm T
1t we )

gk - . I —
- oe G e B — = o= .
R TR s ey g - VIS JiHAvED




EXHIBIT "A"

METES AND BOUNDS DESCRIPTION

Being 14.5003 acres (631,632 Square Feet) of land including all of a called 14.498 acres
(631,525 Square Feet) of land conveyed to KENROC FOURTEEN LLC, a Texas limited
liability company by a deed dated March 9, 2016 and recorded under C.F. No. 2016020050, as
recorded in the Real Property Records of Montgomery County, Texas (R.P.R.M.C.), with said
14.5003 Acre Tract lying in the JOHN H. CORNER Survey, Abstract No. 8, near Montgomery,
Montgomery County Texas, being more particularly described by metes and bounds as follows;

BEGINNING at a point in the East Right-of Way line of LONE STAR PARKWAY (a Variable
Width R.O.W,, M.C.C.F. 2004-134117, R.P.RM.C,), from which a 5/8-inch iron rod with a cap
bears SOUTH 66°28'57" EAST - 0.24', also being the Southwest corner of that certain 5.4577
Acre Tract of land conveyed from L C ACQUISITIONS, LTD to ESTATES OF MIA LAGO,
LTD. by a deed dated August 31, 2007 and recorded under Clerk's File No, 2007-104141,
R.P.RM.C.;

THENCE, departing the East Right-of Way line of LONE STAR PARKWAY in a Northeasterly
direction along the Southeast line of said 5.4577 Acre Tract of land, same being the meanders of
the centerline of STEWART CREEK the following courses and distances:

South 85°22'33" East, 45.56 feet to a point for a corner;

" North 49°38'59" East, 125.44 feet to a point for a corner;
North 9°26'11" West, 28.68 feet to a point for a corner;
North 3°32'59" East, 25.96 fect to a peint for a corner;
North 11°35'55" East, 105.53 feet to a point for a corner;
North 81°03'36" East, 113.97 feet to a point for a corner;

THENCE, North 89°13'53" East, passing a point at a distance of 51.56 feet for the Southwest
corner of Lot 1, Block 2 of ESTATES OF MIA LAGO, SECTION ONE, according to the map
or plat thereof recorded in Cabinet Z, Sheet 1130, of the Map Records of Montgomery County,
Texas (M.C.M.R.), for a total of 105,16 feet to a point in the south line of said Lot 1 for a corner;

THENCE, continuing along the meanders of the centerline of STEWART CREEK the following
courses and distances:




South 33°0524" East, 41,47 feet to a point for a corner;
South 14°24'36" East, 59.48 feet to a point for a corner;

North 88°39'01" East, 98.57 feet to a point for a corner;

THENCE, North 21°40'18" East, 148.30 feet to a point for a corner, also being the Southwest
corner of Lot 2, Block 2 of ESTATES OF MIA LAGO, SECTION ONE;

THENCE, North 66°19'58" East, 68.93 feet, continuing along the meanders of the centerline of
STEWART CREEK to a point for a corner;

THENCE, South 86°28'39" East, 115.55 feet to a point for a corner, also being a Southeast
corner of Lot 2, Block 2 of ESTATES OF MIA LAGO, SECTION ONE;

THENCE, continuing along the meanders of the centerline of STEWART CREEK the following
courses and distances:

South 53°16'48" East, 85,84 feet to a point for a corner;

THENCE, North 17°2729" West, 106.87 feet to a point for a corner, also being an interior
cornet of Lot 3, Block 2 of ESTATES OF MIA LAGO, SECTION ONE;

THENCE, along the West line of Lots 24-29, Block 1 of STEWART CREEK FARMS
REPLAT, SECTION ONE, according to the map or plat thereof recorded in Cabinet Z, Sheet 1,
M.C.M.R., same being the meanders of the centerline of STEWART CREEK the following
courses and distances:

South 48°16'39" East, 80.52 feet to a point for a corner;
South 53°46'23" East, 43.76 feet to a point for a corner;
South 17°52'51" iast, 33.34 feet to a point for a corner;

South 27°30'33" East, 33.19 feet to a point for a corner;




South 20°04'55" East, 44.34 feet to a point for a corner;
South 44°23'35" West, 25.13 feet to a point for a corner;
South 34°37'19" West, 42,98 feet to a point for a corner;
South 25°14'22" East, 46,82 fect to a point for a corner;
South 31°04'40" East, 29,87 feet to a point for a corner;
South 31°18'50" East, 48.19 feet to a point for a corner;
South 46°40'38" East, 27.15 feet to a point for a corner;
South 26°25'00" East, 28.71 feet to a point for a corner;
South 20°17'20" East, 80.53 feet to a point for a corner;
South 32°17'34" East, 39.73 feet to a point for a corner;
South 9°13'09" West, 32,17 feet to a point for a corner;
South 36°37'57" East, 29.64 feet to a point for a corner;
South 36°13'13" East, 35.35 feet to a point for a corner;
South 57°01'30" East, 12.63 feet to a point for a corner;
South 24°20'14" East, 38.60 feet to a point for a corner;
South 27°43'38" West, 52.77 feet to a point for a corner;
South 68°47'11" West, 54.23 feet to a point for a corner;
North 81°1120" West, 28.16 feet to a point for a corner;
South 60°20'42" West, 26.16 feet to a point for a corner;
South 33°33'10" West, 48.71 feet to a point for a corner;
South 23°13'53" East, 29.35 feet to a point for a corner;

South 27°38'51" East, 14.47 feet to a point for a corner;

South 27°36'43" East, 47.98 feet along the meanders of the centerline of a gully to a point for a

corner;

THENCE, South 11°34'29" East, 54.75 feet to a point for a corner, also being the Southeast
corner of that certain 14.498 Acres conveyed to KENROC FOURTEEN LLC, a Texas limited
liability company by General Warranty Deed dated March 7, 2016 and recorded under Clerk's

File Number 2016020050, R.P.R.M.C,;




THENCE, departing the gully centerline, North 79°39°45” West, 1085.07 feet along the North
line of a called 6.202 acres (270,165 Square Feet) of land conveyed to KENROC SIX LLC, a
Texas limited liability company by a deed dated March 9, 2016 and recorded under County
Clerk’s File Number (C.F. No.) 2016020049 as recorded in the Real Property Records of
Montgomery County, Texas (R.P.R.M.C.) to a point in the East Right-of-Way line of said LONE
STAR PARKWAY from which a found 5/8-inch iron rod with cap bears South 65°00'14" East,
0.34 feet, also being the Southwest corner of that certain 14.498 Acres conveyed to said
KENROC FOURTEEN LLC;

THENCE, North 22°10'39" East, 129.55 feet along the East Right-of-Way line of LONE STAR
PARKWAY and the West line of said 14.498 Acres to a point from which a found 5/8-inch iron
rod with cap bears South 89°16'47" Fast, 0.27 feet;

THENCE along the East Right-of Way line of LONE STAR PARKWAY, along an arc curving
to the left with a radius of 2,165.02 feet, an arc length of 192.24 feet, through a delta of
05°05'15", and a chord bearing North 12° 11' 30" East, 192.18 feet to the POINT OF
BEGINNING, and containing a computed 14.5003 acres {631,632 square feet) of land.

S

L. Shayne Thatcher, R.P.LS. #4544
Town and Country Surveyors

- A Landpoint Company

2219 Sawdust Road, Ste. 2003

The Woodlands, Texas 77380
TBPLS Registration No. 10194172
Tele # (281) 465-8730

Job No. 16-1209




EXHIBIT “B”

ANNEXATION SERVICE PLAN
CITY OF MONTGOMERY, TEXAS

TERRITORY

This Service Plan is applicable to the territory which is described in Exhibits A attached to this
document, which is being annexed by the City of Montgomery, Texas.

INTENT

It is the intent of the City of Montgomery that this Service Plan shall provide for the delivery of
full available municipal services to the annexed areas in accordance with State law. The failure of
this plan to describe any particular service shall not be deemed to be an attempt to omit the
provision of such services from the annexed areas. The delivery of municipal services may be
accomplished through any means permitted by law.,

EFFECTIVE TERM

This Service Plan shall be in effect for a ten-year period commencing on the effective date of this
annexation.

AMENDMENT OR RENEWAL

This Service Plan may be amended from time to time as provided by Texas Local Government
Code, Section 43.056 (e), (j), and (k). Renewal of the Service Plan shall be at the sole option of
the City Council.

FIRE

Existing Services. Fire suppression and protection service is currently provided in the annexed
areas by the Montgomery County Emergency Services District No. 2.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery, Texas does not provide fire suppression
services. Fire suppression will continue to be available to the area upon annexation from the
Montgomery County Emergency Services District No. 2.

POLICE

Existing Services: Currently, the area to be annexed is under the jurisdiction of the
Montgomery County Sheriff's Department.

Services to be provided: Upon annexation, the City of Montgomery Police Department will
extend regular and routine patrols to the area. It is anticipated that the implementation of police




patrol activities can be effectively accommodated within the current budget and staff
appropriation.

BUILDING INSPECTION

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided: The City will provide code enforcement services upon annexation. This
includes issuing building, electrical and plumbing permits for any new construction and
remodeling, and enforcing all other applicable codes which regulates building construction within
the City of Montgomery.

PLANNING AND ZONING

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided: The Planning and Zoning Comission's responsibility for regulating
development and land use through the administration of the City of Montgomery Zoning
Ordinance will extend to this area on the effective date of the annexation, The property will also
continue to be regulated under the requirements of the City of Montgomery's Subdivision
Ordinance. These services can be provided within the City’s current budget.

LIBRARY

Existing Services: Currently the area to be annexed is served by the Montgomery County
Memorial Library System and its Charles B. Stewart West Branch Library.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery does not provide Library services, but the
Montgomery County Memorial Library System will continue to be available to the annexed area.

STREET MAINTENANCE

Existing Services: Montgomery County and State of Texas road maintenance

Services (o be provided.: Maintenance of public streets and ditches in the annexed area will
be provided by the City to the extent pubic right-of-ways are not maintained by the State of Texas
and Montgomery County. Street maintenance is subject to all applicable City ordinances, including
the City's Subdivision Ordinance. This service can be provided within the current budget
appropriation.

STORM WATER MANAGEMENT

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided: Tn accordance with applicable City ordinances, developers will provide
storm water drainage at their own expense and will be inspected by the City engineer at time of




completion, The City, upon acceptance, will then maintain the drainage upon approval, subject to
compliance with all City ordinances.

STREET LIGHTING

Existing Services. None

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery will coordinate any request for improved
street lighting with the local electric provider in accordance with standard policy.

WATER SERVICE

Existing Services: None

Services to be provided, Water service to the area will be provided in accordance with the
applicable City of Montgomery codes and departmental policies, and any applicable Development
Agreement. Privately owned and operated water wells are not authorized in the City. By City
ordinance, all buildings in the City must be connected to City water and sewer. When property
develops in the area, water service shall be provided in accordance with extension ordinances at
the in-city rates. Extension of service shall comply with all City codes and ordinances.

SANTIARY SEWER SERVICE

Existing Services: None

Services 1o be provided. Sanitary sewer service to the area of proposed annexation will be
provided in accordance with applicable codes and departmental policies, and any applicable
Development Agreement. When property develops in the areas, sanitary sewer service shall be
provided in accordance with present extension ordinances at the in-city rates. Extension of service
shall comply with City codes and ordinances.

SOLID WASTE SERVICE

Existing Services. None

Services fo be provided. Waste Management, Inc., a solid waste collection company,
currently provides residential solid waste collection services under an exclusive contract with the
City. The City invoices the City customer for the monthly garbage collection charge with its water
and sewer charges. Residential service shall be available to the area to be annexed in compliance
with existing City policies. Businesses may use the Waste Management residential trash carts if
they wish. Commercial dumpster service will be provided under a separate contract between each
business and the contractor selected by each business.

NATURAL GAS UTILITY SERVICE

Existing Services: None




Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery does not provide natural gas utility service.
LDC Natural Gas Company, a public natural gas utility company, provides natural gas service,
which is presently not available to all parts of the City.

EMERGENCY MEDICAL SERVICE

Existing: Currently the area to be annexed is served by the Montgomery County Hospital District’s
Emergency Medical Service’s emergency and non-emergency ambulance transport service.

Services fo be provided: The City of Montgomery, Texas does not provide first responder or
emergency services. Emergency medical services will continue to be available to the area upon
annexation from the Montgomery County Hospital District’s Emergency Medical Service (EMS)
ambulances.

HEALTH CODE ENFORCEMENT SERVICE

Existing: Currently the area to be annexed is served by Montgomery County Environmental
Health Service, a department of Montgomery County.

Services to be provided: The City of Montgomery does not provide health code enforcement
services. These services will continue to be provided by Montgomery County Environmental
Health Service.

PARKS, PLAYGROUNDS AND SWIMMING POOLS
Existing: None

Services to be provided. The City of Montgomery maintains the Cedar Brake Park, Homecoming
Park, Memory Park and Fernland Historical Park. The City does not own or operate a public
swimming pool or other playgrounds. Public school playgrounds will remain the responsibility of
the Montgomery Independent School District. Private recreational facilities, open spaces and
swimming pools are not affected by annexation.

MISCELLANEQOUS

All other applicable municipal services will be provided to the area in accordance with the City of
Montgomery's ordinances and policies governing extension of municipal services to newly
annexed areas,




	AGENDA -0031417
	ITEM #1 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	ITEM #2 - KENROC FEASIBILITY STUDY
	ITEM #2 - KENROC FEASIBILITY STUDY
	ITEM #2(A) - KENROC Feasibility Study

	ITEM #3 - LONGVIEW GREENS MINIATURE GOLFING VARIANCE REQUEST
	ITEM #4 - CITY ENGINEER'S REPORT ON BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE
	ITEM #4 - CITY ENGINEER'S REPORT ON BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE
	ITEM #4(A) - Buffalo Springs Bridge Eng. Report (2)

	ITEM #5 - PRESENTATION OF AMY FONT BUFFALO SPRINGS BRIDGE
	ITEM #6 - CITY PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS
	ITEM #6 - CITY PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS
	ITEM #6(A) - CITY PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTIONS

	ITEM #7 - FEE FOR PROFESSIONAL PHOTOGRAPHERS IN FERNLAND PARK
	ITEM #8 - RESOLUTION OPPOSING SENATE BILL 2
	ITEM #9 - LANDSCAPING ORDINANCE
	ITEM #10 - ANNEXATION ORDINANCE FOR KENROC PROPERTY



